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To The Members of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise of Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive iIncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2020,
and its profits, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board
report, but does not include the standalone financial statement and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Management responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board
of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.




e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that individually
or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of an identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
“A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records.

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “B”.




(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

During the year, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors, except for sitting
fees.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. -Refer Note to the standalone financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For LODHA & COMPANY

Chartered Acgountants

Firm registr.m%ryd. - 301051E
1 ﬁ

A. M\Hariharan

Mumbai Partner

7" May, 2020 Membership No. 38323

UDIN 20038323AAAABE3381
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“ANNEXURE A”

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGUALTORY
REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF “JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO
LIMITED” FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we state that:

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets).

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment (fixed assets) by which all property, plant and equipment (fixed assets) are
verified in a phased manner, over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment (fixed assets)
were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

2. The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during
the year. As per the information and explanations given to us, discrepancies noticed on physical
verification between the physical stocks and book records were not material.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act to the extent applicable, with
respect to the investments made and security provided.

5. No deposits have been accepted by the Company within the meaning of directives issued by
RBI (Reserve Bank of India) and Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and Rules framed there under.

6. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income- tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to the
Company with appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a bank and a financial
institution during the year. Further, the Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from
debenture holders and Government during the year.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year or in the recent past. Based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books of accounts and other records of the
Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India
and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
party are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details have been
disclosed as required by the applicable Ind AS (Refer Note no 36 to the Ind AS Financial
Statements).

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.




Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions prescribed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons
connected with them during the year.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. — 301051E

A. M. Hariharan
Mumbai Partner
7" May, 2020 Membership No. 38323
UDIN 20038323AAAABE3381
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“ANNEXURE B”

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGUALTORY
REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF “JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO
LIMITED” FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has broadly, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm regis’tjﬁion No. — 301051E

7 J

A. M. Hariharan

Partner

Membership No. 38323

UDIN 20038323AAAABE3381

Mumbai
7" May, 2020




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020
- (In )
. As at As at
- Particulars Note | 34t March, 2020 | | _31st March, 2019
|  ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets:
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 2,96,35,25,219 3,25,15,80 672
(b) Capital work-in-progress 15,46,565 10,83,975
(c) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 12,32,67,268 10 85,65,520
(i) Other financial assets 7 13,92,410 12,96,834
(d) Income tax assets (net) 21,83,856 21,15,433
(e) Other non-current assels 1 || 3,24,536 30,086,135
|
3,09,22,39,854 3,36,76,48.569
{2) Current assets: |
(a) Inventories 8 43,48,062 40,51,248
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 15,79,50,926 15,35,84,976
(i) Trade receivables 9 12,02,81,619 15,80,24,590
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 9,46,726 40,53,937
(iv) Other financial assets 7 63,66,373 1,54,87,165
(c) Other current assets 11 17,61,525 6,47,505
29,16,565,231 33,68,18,421
TOTAL ASSETS 3,38,38,95.085 3.70.44,97.990
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12A 1,37,50,00,000 1,37,50,00,000
(b) Other equity 12B 77,99,60,803 49,84,29,196
2,15,49,60,803 1,87,34,29,196
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities:
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 93,43,73,044 1,53,69,34,546
(b) Provisions 14 21,71,690 14 41 886
93,65,44,734 1,53,83,76,432
(2) Current liabilities:
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables due to 15
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small
enterprises N N
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises & small enterprises 86,66,693 59,16,303
(i) Other financial liabilities 16 23,38,23,251 20,69,10,591
(b) Other current liabilities 17 4,77,72,011 7.,88,03,137
(¢) Provisions 14 2,58,665 5,096,794
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 18,68,928 4,65 537
29,23,89,548 29,26,92,362
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3.38.38.95,085 3,70.44.97.990
See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements 1-41
As per our attached report of even date
For Lodha & C For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accoultants
Firm Registratio 01051E
‘ - - ‘//'
1 ®\-h0¢ ./

/ A. M. Ra mdr]a Chavan atish Kumar Chabbra
Partner % Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.38323 DIN: 06537224 IN: 07971{04

\J\-M}
Place: Mumbai Narendra Rahalkar Krishnaraj Nair
Date: May 7, 2020 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

(In F)

For the Year For the Year
Particulars Note ended ended
B _31st March, 2020 | | 31st March,2019
I Revenue from operations 18 80,38,29,606 80,78,42,700
Il Otherincome 19 1,56,36,698 2,21,04,989
1] Total income (I+1I) 81,94,66,304 82,99,47,689
IV Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 20 1,44,40,951 99,86,404
Finance costs 21 13,36,03,168 18,28 49,313
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 29,12,37,271 29,10,64,458
Other expenses 23 3,87,27,700 3.81.52,842
Total Expenses (V) 47,80,09,090 52,20,53,017
V Profit before tax (lll-lV) 34,14,57,214 30,78,94,672
VIl Tax expense: 24
Current tax 6,00,83,841 6,68,71,079
Deferred tax (5,55,30,435) (6,03,38.467)
Deferred tax (recoverable)/ payable in future tariff 5,55,30,435 6,03,38,467
6,00,83,841 6,68,71,079
VIl Profit after tax for the year (V - VI) 28,13,73,373 24,10,23,593
VIl Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans (1,91,734) 55,132
- Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 33,500 (11,880)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VIl - VIII) 28,15,31,607 24,09.80.341
X Earnings per share of Z 10 each 29
Basic 2.05 1.756
Diluted 2.05 1.75

As per our attached report of even date

For Lodha & &o.

Chartered Accoljntants

Firm Registraté 0,301051E
? 0

A. M\Hariharan

wrl,/
* ( MUMBAI
Q

Membership No.38323

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 7, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Ravjndra Chavan
Chairman

DIN: 06537224
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Narendra Rahalkar
Company Secretary
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P A
ish Kumar Chabbra

Managing Director
IN: 0797104

Krishnaraj Nair

Chief Financial Officer




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

A: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{In %)

Balance as at 1st April,2018

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2019

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2020

1,37,50,00,000

1,37,50,00,000

1,37.60,00.000

B: OTHER EQUITY

Membership No.38323

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 7, 2020

DIN: 06537224

P pbo e

Narendra Rahalkar
Company Secretary

Items of other
Reserves & Surplus comprehensive
Particulars o Total Other Equity
Contingenc Remeasurements
Retained Earnings gency of net defined
Reserve#
benefit plans
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 32,14,94,233 10,18,32,045 {1,13,893) 42,32,12,385
Profit for the year 24,10,23,693 - - 24,10,23,693
Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT (1,37,97,077) 1,37,07,077 _ .
|Regulation 2015
|ividend {13.75.00,000) - - (13,75,00,000)
Dividend Distribution Tax (2,82,63.530) - - (2,82,63,530)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) - - (43,252) (43,252)
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 38,29,57,219 11,56,29,122 (1,57,145) 49,84,29,196
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 38,29,57,219 11,56,29,122 (1,67,145) 49,84,29,196
Profit for the year 28,13,73,373 - - 28,13,73,373
Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT
Requlation 2015 (1,37,97,077) 1,37,97,077 - -
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) - . 1,58,234 1,68,234
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 65,05,33,51.5 12,94,26,199 1,089 77,99,60,803
As per our attached report of even date
For Lodha & Gp. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accotjutants
0.301051E
5
~ O = A ~
0 _\.-"\.j

A. M. Hariharan Rh{rvindl"a'ctlavan Yatish Kumér Chabbra
Partner "~ Chairman Magaging Director

Krishnaraj Nair

Chief Financial Officer




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3

18T MARCH, 2020

(In ¥)

Particulars

For the Year ended

31st March, 2020

For the Year ended
31st March, 2019

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before taxation 34,14,57,214 30,78,94,672
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29,12,37,271 29,10,64,458
Interest income & gain on sale of current investments (1,56,36,698) (2,21,04,989)
Loss on write off of property, plant and equipment - 6,603
Finance costs 13,36,03,168 18,28,49,313
Operating profit before working capital changes 75,06,60,955 75,97,10,057
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (Increase) Trade & other receivables 3,48,23,370 (6,06,64,044)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables & other liabilities 23,89,759 (1,94,72,520)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (2,96,814) 7,49,559
Direct Taxes paid (5,87,13,950) (6,63,93,662)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 72,88,63,320 61,39,29,390
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including CWIP , capital
advances & pre-operative expenses (net of capital expenditure) (7,87,127) (1,19,564)
Interest income & gain on sale of current investments 1,56,36,698 2,21,04,989
Purchase of long term investments (1,47,01,748) (1,39,05,374)
Proceeds / (Purchase) of current investments (43,65,950) 1,63,83,452
Increase in interest accrued on investments (3,06,623) (1,57,081)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (45,24,750) 2,43,06,422

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings / (Repayments) of term loan (net)
Finance costs paid

Dividend (includes dividend distribution tax)

(60,23,87,426)
(12,50,58,355)

(28,77,41,389)
(18,28,49,313)
(16,57,63.530)

NET CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(72,74,45,781)

(63,63,54,232)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (31,07,211) 18,81,580
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 40,53,937 21,72,357
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT END OF THE YEAR 9,46,726 40,53,937

See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Lodha

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

& -~ M
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Yatish Kumar Chabbra

Raviridra Chavan

Partner
Membership No.:38323

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 7, 2020

Chairman
DIN: 06537224
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Narendra Rahalkar
Company Secrelary

Managing Director]

Chief Financial Officer




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

3.2

3.3

General information

Jaigad PowerTransco Limited (the Company) which is the joint venture of JSW Energy Limited and Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Company Limited with 74% and 26% share holding respectively has been set up to construct operate and maintain 55 Kilo
meters of one Jaigad—New Koyna 400 KV double circuit (Quad) transmission line and 110 kilo meters of one Jaigad-karad 400 KV double
circuit (Quad) transmission line

The construction of 55 Kilo meters Jaigad-New —New Koyna &110 kilo meters of Jaigad-karad 400 KV double circuit (Quad) transmission line
has been completed and has been declared for commercial operations with effect from 7th July 2010 & 2nd December 2011 respectively

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS')
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendment) Rules. 2016

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules. 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules. 2016.

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and historical cost convention except for the
certain material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS and explained in the ensuing policies below:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR")

Use of estimates & Judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the
financial statements is made relying on these estimates,

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based
on historical experience and various other assumptions and factars (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be
reasonable under the existing circumstances, Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods

The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the Company for preparation of financial statements is described in note 4

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets. borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use,

Transmission system assets are considered "ready for their intended use”, for the purpose of capitalization, after test charging/ successful
commissioning of the system/ assets and on completion of stabilization period wherever technically required.

The cost of an addition or extension to an existing asset which is of a capital nature and which becomes an integral part of the existing asset
is usually added to its gross book value. Any addition or extension, which has a separate identity and is capable of being used after the
existing asset is disposed of, is accounted for separately.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

In case of commissioned assets, work against deposits/works contracts where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected:
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in the year of final settlements

An item of property. plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to anse from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its
useful life, the present value of the estimate cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition
aor construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized

Cost of regular comprehensive maintenance work (such as major overhaul) are capitalized as a separate component if they satisfy the
recognition criteria

Other Intangible assets :-

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as Intangible assets based on materiality, accounting prudence and
significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation & amortisation:
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided, pro-rata for the period of use, by the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the provisions of Part B
of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Leasehold land is amartized over the period of the lease.
Software is depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.

When the historical cost of an asset has undergone a change due to price adjustment, exchange fluctuation or similar factors the
depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset.

"Useful Life" in relation to a transmission system is 35 Years as defined in Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulation 2015

Capital Work-in-progress and Pre-operative Expenses during Construction Period

Capital Work-in-Progress includes expenditure during construction period incurred on projects under implementation treated as pre-operative
expenses pending allocation to the assets. These expenses are apportioned to the respective fixed assets on their completion /
commencement of commercial production.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment foss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful tives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognised immediately in profit or loss

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits which are short term and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Inventories:

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase price, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at the fower of weighted average cost or net realizable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition:

Transmission Income is accounted for on accrual basis for the period of operation of the transmission line computed based on the approved
Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR) or where the ARR is not approved, on the basis of the tariff order,

Where neither the ARR nor the tariff order are approved, transmission income is accounted as per Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations 2015(MERC Regulations) where under, transmission income is computed by taking the total
costs, contingency provision and Return on Equity (ROE) @ 15.5% on post-tax basis and after grossing up with the applicable income taxes
for the purpose of revenue

Any difference between the total annual revenue recognised as aforesaid and the annual revenue as approved by MERC in respect of ARR /
Truing up Petition filed is adjusted / recognised during the accounting period in which approval of the ARR / Truing up Petition, as the case
may be, is received from MERC,

Interest income:
Surcharge receivable towards delayed receipt of payment for Transmission services rendered by the company is accounted in the period
during which such surcharge is approved by MERC.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currency transactions:

In preparing the financial statements of Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that, date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3.13

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised Iin profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive  use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings

Employee benefits:

a. Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services

b. Long term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation using
projected unit credit method

c. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Defined contribution plans:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions

Defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit retirement benefits plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, and spread
over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees' services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in
respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. Actuarial valuations being carried
out at the end of each annual reporting period for defined benefit plans.

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of resignation/
superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for the every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of
each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust for providing share-based payment to its employees. The Trust is used as a vehicle for
distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The Trust buys shares of the Parent Company from the market,
for giving shares to employees, The Company treats the Trust as its extension and shares held by the Trust are treated as treasury shares

Taxation:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of
profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.14

3.15

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for ali deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow ali or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability ts settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 1ts assets and liabilities

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will
pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination. the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination

The income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events,

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares
would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations, Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at
the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Provisions , Contingencies and commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, When there is a possible
or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is rem o provisiorf or disclosure is made,
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Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets
Provisions, contingent liabilities. contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract,

Financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are inilially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or
loss) are added o or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities. as appropriate. on initial recognition
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabllities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other
than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried al fair value through profit
or loss. Mnancial assets carried at fair value through protit ur luss are titially recugrused al fan value, dnd bdansaction cusls are expensed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the entity's business model for managing the financlal assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristice of the financial asset.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition)

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Interest income 1s recognised in profit or loss for FVTOC! debt instruments, For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’, When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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income 1s recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
ncome 1s recognised In profit or loss and is included in the “Other income ' line item

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On nitial recognition. the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes In fair value I other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election I1s not permitted If the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subseguently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes In farr value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’ The cumulative gain or loss ts not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if

« 1t has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of shaort-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive the dividends is
established. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividands recognised in profit or loss are
included in the 'Other income' line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fan value in other comprehensive income for investments in eguity instiuments which are not helid for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL,

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at
FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between ail contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original effective interest rate, This is assessed on an
individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward-looking.

The Company's trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade
receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition
of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the
lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.
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The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and s adjusted for
forward fooking estimates At every reporting date the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12—-month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The
expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit nisk on financial asset increases significantly since its
initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period. credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit
risks since initial recognition. then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL,

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured at
FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If lhe Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety. the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset). the Company atlocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
diffaranca halwaan tha carrying amnunt allncated to the part that is no langar racngnisad and the som of the consideration received o the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity (nstruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments,

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method or at fair value.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a
loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL,
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A financial liability 1s classified as held for trading if

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it 1s part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking, or

- it1s a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

+ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise

arise,
- the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy. and

information about the Companying is provided internally on that basis; or
- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 108 permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109

Financial liabilittes at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'Other income' line item

However. for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss

Financial liabiities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financiat liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged. cancelled or have expired.
An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss,

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no recfassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such change are evident to external parties. A change in the business model
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in the business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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3.19

Original Classification Revised Classification Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous amortised
Amortised cost FVTPL cost and fair value is recognised in statement
of profit and loss

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

FVPTL Amortised cost based on new gross carrying amount

Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous amortised
Amortised cost FVTOCI cost and fair value is recognised in OCl. No
change in EIR due to reclassification

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted
FVTOCI Amortised cost against fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured
at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
FVTPL FVTOCI new gross carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

Assets continue to be measured at fair value
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
FVTOG! EVTPL in OCl 1s reclassified to statement of profit and
loss at the reclassification date.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Leases :

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the Retrospective Modified Approach and therefore comparative information has not been
restated and is presented as per Ind AS 17. Details of accounting policies under both Ind AS 17 and Ind AS 116 are presented separately
below.

Policy applicable from April 1, 2019:

The Company as lessor:

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Lease classification is made at the inception date and is reassessed only if there is a lease modification. Changes in estimates (for example,
changes in estimates of the economic life or of the residual value of the underlying asset), or changes in circumstances (for example, default
by the lessee), do not give rise to a new classification of a lease for accounting purposes. For a modification to a finance lease, if the lease
would have been classified as an operating lease had the modification been in effect at the inception date, lease modification is accounted as
a new lease from the effective date of modification and carrying amount of underlying asset is measured as the net investment in the lease
immediately before the effective date of the lease modification.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases,
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3.20

.21

The Company as lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract 1s or contains a lease. at inception of the contract. A contract I1s, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether = (i) the contract invoives the use of an
identified asset; (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease. and (iii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee except for short-term leases (i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of
low value assets (i.e. below Rupees five lac). For these short term and low value leases the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to refiect interest on the lease liability (using the effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liability (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not
accounted for as a separate lease. in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

For a contract that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

Policy applicable prior to April 1, 2019:

The Company as a lessor:

Amount due from the lessee under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the
leases. Lease receipts are apportioned between finance income and reduction of the revenue so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the finance lease receivable. Finance lease income is allocated to the accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Company as a lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
abligation.

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

New material accounting pronouncement, which are not yet effective:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which
would have been applicabte from April 1, 2020.

Change in accounting estimates

The effect of change in an accounting estimate shall be recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss accounts except where
estimates relates to assets and liabilities or an equity it shall be recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset. liability or
equity.
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4  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:
In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 3 above the Company Is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resufts may differ
from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period. or (n the period of the revision and future period. iIf the revision affects
current and future periods

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Selvice concession arrangements

The management have assessed applicability of Annexure D of Ind AS 115: 'Service Concession Arrangements' with respect to transmission
assets. In assessing the applicability, they have exercised significant judgment in relation to the underlying ownership of the assets, terms of
Licence, ability to determine prices, useful lives of the assets, Based on detailed evaluation, transmission assets do not meet the criterion for
recognition as service concession arrangements.

Reyulatory deferral accounts
The Company has not adopted Ind as 114 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ since in previous GAAP, Guidance Note on Accounting for the Rate

Regulated Activities, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) was not adopted

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives and residual values of property. plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent
upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external
factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its properly. plant and equipment to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commaodity prices. market demand and supply
economic and regulatory environment. discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets

Contingencies

In the normat course of business. contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that
are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not recognised.

Fair value measurements

Some of the Company'’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. All assets and liabilities for which fair value measured or disclosed
in financial statements are categorized with in the fair value hierarchy described as Level 1, Level 2 and Leve! 3 as below:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

+ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

for the purpose of fair value disclosure, the company determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the assets and liabilities and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Tax
The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect of any period is dependent upon the interpretation of
the relevant tax rules Whllst an assessment must be made of deferred tax position of each entity within the Company, these matters are
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NOTE: 6 - Investments

As at

318t March. 2020

As at
Jist March, 2019

Currant | Non Currem

Current Non Currint |
Investments carried at: r
A. Designated as fair value through profit and loss |
I. Quoted Investments |
(8) Investmenls in Mutual Funds 15.79,50,926 1535 84 976
Mutual Fund Name
S8I Mutual Fund Rs. 15,79,50,926
Fully paid up, trade
B. Investments carried at amortised cost
. Unquoted Investments
[&) Investmenls 1n governmenl securities - 12,32,67,268 10 85,65 520
15,79,50,926 | 12,32,67,268 15,16,84,975 | 10,85,65,520
Note
Quoted Investments
Book value 15,79,50,926 - 15,35.84,976
Market value 15,79,50,926 - 15.35,84.976
Unquoted Investments
Book value . 12,32,67,268 . 10.85,65.,520
Markat valug - 13,36,28,932 - 11.18.50,729
As at As at
NOTE: 7 - Other fInancial assets 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Carried at amortised cost
(a) Security deposits with others
= Unsecured, considered good
Depaosits towards Lease of Land from JSW Energy Ltd - 13,92,410 - 12.96 834
b} Interest receivable
Interesl accrued on investments 15,03,045 - 11,96 422
C) Revenue Receivable
Unbilled revenue (pending Tarniff Order) 48,63,328 - 142,80.743 -
63,66,373 13.92,410 1,64,87,165 12,96,834
As at As at
NOTE: 8 - Inventories 31st March,2020 31st March,2018
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Stores and spares 43,48,062 - 40,51,248
(valued at cost and certified by the management)
43 48 062 - 40,51,248 -
As at As at
NOTE: 9 - Trade receivables 31st March,.2020 31st March,2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
a) considered good - Secured; - - - -
b) considered good - Unsecured:; 12,02,81,619 - 15,90,24,590 -
c) which have significant increase in Credit Risk: and - - - -
d} credit impaired. - - - -
12,02.81,619 - 15,90,24,590 -
As at As at
NOTE: 10 - Cash and cash equlvalents 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Balance with banks
In current accounts 9.46,726 - 40,53,937 -
9,465,726 - 40,53,937 -
As at As at
NOTE: 11 - Other assets 31st March,2020 31st March, 2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances - 3,24,536 - -
Advances to vendors 88,563 . 2,892 -
Prepaid expenses 16,72,962 - 6,44,513 30,06,135
17.61.525 3.24,536 6.47.505 30,06,135
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NOTE: 124

Equity uhare capital

150,000.000 Equity Shares of # 10 each

(Previous year 150.000.000 equity shares of & 10 each)
InRued, subscribed and paid-up:
137 500.000 Equity Shares of 10 each

(Previous year 137.500,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

=l

I As at
31st March,2020

As at
31st March,2019

1,37,60,00,000

50,00,00 nnn_T'

| 1,50,00,00,000

1,37,60,00,000

Details of shareholding

31st March,2020

1375 00 1.37.,50,00,000
EIf e £, 00,000
As at As at

J1st March,2019

[ Detaits of shinreholding by Holding Company Mo, of Shares No. ol Shares
JSW Enngy Limaed 10,17,50,000 10,17,50,000
by Details of shareholding more than 5%
JEW Enongy Limiled {(Holding Comnany) 10,17,50,000 10,17,50,000
74% T4%
Maharashlra State Electricily Transmission Company Limited 3,57,50,000 3,57,50,000
26%| 26%

c) Terms & Rights attached to equity shares

{Guriesal Meeting,

i) In the event of li he equity shar
propoition to the sharehokding.

d} The reconclllation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital is set out below:

Particulars

Balance as at the beginning of the year
{ssso0l during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

NQTE: 12B - Other equity

A ot Asoat
Eakid 1 13
Ho. of Shares Mo. of Shars
13,76,00,000 13,75.00,000
13,75,00,000 13,75,00 000

{li The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of 10 each. Each hoider of equily shares is entitled lo one vote per share. The Company
deelares and pay dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by ihe Board of Directors is subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual

are eligible o receive lhe remaining assels of lhe Company afler distribution of all preferential amounl, in

Reserves & Surplus

Items of other
comprehensive

income
Particulars Total Other Equity

Rt | contngency | e

Earnings Reserve#d plans
Balange as at {5t April, 20118 32,14,94,233 10,18,32,045 (1,13,893) 42.32.12.£
Prafil for the year 24 10,23 583 - - 24.10.23.593
Tr 1o Contngeney Reseive as par MERC MYT Regulation 2015 (1.37.87.077) 1.37.87.077 . i
Dividend (13,75,00,000) - - {13,75,00,000)
Dividend Distribution Tax (282,53 510) D - RE.H.BJ.SBB)I
Remeasurements of the defined banefi Gabililies / {asso) - - (43.25 (43,252}
Bilance as at 315t March, 2018 38,2957 219 11.56,29.122 {1,57,146) 49,04,28,196
Frofil for (hi year 2813 13373 . - 281373373
i o C Reserve as per MERC MYT R lalion 2015 (1,37 .87,077) 13797077 - -
Remeasurements of i defined benefit labiilies 7 {assel) 1,508,214 1.58.24
Balance as at 11t March, 2020 65,05,33,515 12,94,26,199 1,088 77,59,i50,003
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¥
NOTE: 13 As at As at
31st March,2020 31st March,2019
Financial liahilities - Borrowings Current Non Current Current Non Currenl
Secured Borrowing
Term Loans:
From Banks 11,07,71,256 49,74,10,630 - -
From financial institutions 9,82,28,744 44,10,89,370 20,90,00,000 1,564,52,50,000
20,90,00,000 93,85,00,000 20,90,00,000 1,54,52,50,000
Less : Unamortised borrowing costs 19,15,333 41,26,956 20,89,409 83,15,454
Less : Current maturities of long term debt 20,70,84,667 E 20,69,10,591 -
(Included in note no 16)
- 93,43,73,044 - 1,63,69,34,546

Details of Security for Term Loans:

First ranking charge on

(a) moveable assets

(b) on operating cash flows, commissions, revenue, receivables and interest in all the bank accounts including the trust and retention
accounts and intangible assets.

(c) all rights, title, interest benefits, claims, demands etc., in the Company's project documents, insurance contracts, letter of credit etc.

Terms of Repayment: ¥ 220 Crores Term Loan repayable in 52 Structured Quarterly Installments commencing from 30th Sept, 2017

As at As at
|Period of Repayment 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
3 Ve 41,80,00,000 41 80,00,000
4.5 Vania 41,80,00,000 41,80,00,000
— 31,15,00,000 91.82,50,000

Considering the COVID 19 situation, the Reserve Bank of India has granted relief to borrowers by way of moratorium of interest and
principal instalments falling due to banks and financial institutions till May 2020. Accordingly, the Company has availed the moratorium
relief and deferred the interest and principal repayments due on 31st March 20 amounting to X 5,22,50,000 and X 85,44,813
respectively.
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¥
As at As at
NOTE: 14 - Provisions 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Provisions for employee benefits 2,58,665 21,71,690 5.96,794 14,41,886
2,58,665 21,71,690 5,96,794 14,41,886
As at As at
NOTE: 15 - Trade Payables 31st March,2020 31st March, 2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Total outstanding dues of Micro, small and medium enterprises # ¢ - =
Taotal outstanding dues of creditors other tharn Micro, small and medium enterprises 86,866,693 - 59116.303 =
86,66.693 - 59,16,303 -
|# Refer Note 35 for dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises
As at As at
NOTE: 16 - Other financlal llabllitles 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Measured at amortised costs
Current maturities of long term borrowings 20,70,84,667 - 20,69,10,591 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 85,44,813 - - -
Revenue adjusiments towards true-up 1,81,93,769 - - -
23,39,23,251 - 20,69,10,591 -
As at As at
NOTE:17 - Other llabiltles 31st March,2020 31st March, 2019
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Advance received from customers 4,608,19,425 - 7.71.66,667 =
Statutory dues 9,52,586 - 16.36,470 -
4.77.72,011 - 7.88.03.137 .
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NOTE: 18 - Revenue from Operations

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
315t March, 2019

Revenue from transmission operations

Less. Impact due to Truing up provisions

80,62,39,831 82,23.51,957
14,10,226 1,45,09,257
80.38.29.606 | | 80.78,42.700 |

NOTE: 19 - Other Income

For the Year ended
31st March. 2020

For the year ended
31st March,2019

1. Interest income

Delayed payment surcharge
Financial assets

2, Others

Other miscellaneous income

Gain on sale of current investments
Net gain arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL

69,226 2,40,735
92,52,093 82,56,009
39,768 .
60,61,215 1.34,23,269
2,24,396 1,84,876
1,56,36,698 2,21,04,989

NOTE: 20 - Employee Benefits Expense

For the Year ended

" For the year ended

31st March, 2020 31st March,2019
Salaries and wages 1,28,39,896 96,29,382
Contribution to provident and other funds 13,38.866 3,15,841
Staff welfare expenses 2,62,189 41.181
1,44,40,981 99,86,404

NOTE: 21 - Finance Costs

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March,2019

Interest expenses
iy Termloan
ii) Other interest expense

13,33,64,5984 18,26,87,639
2,38,584 161,674
13,36,03,168 18,28,48,313

NOTE: 22 - Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March,2019

Depreciation

29,12,37,271

29,10,64.458

29.12,37,271

29,10,64,458

NOTE: 23 - Other Expenses

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March,2019

Rent 6,63,629 8,07,943
Rates & taxes 16,03,664 4,92,793
Repairs and maintenance 1,70,10,347 1.81,86,936
|.egal & other professional charges 42,76,272 2460613
Travelling expenses 20,67,118 18,99,340
Loss on property, plant and equipment written off - 6,603
Advartisement expenses 10,97,341 -
Power 1,02,510 83,520
Insurance charges 4,31,396 3,56,630
Auditors remuneration 9,14,500 8,85,000
Postage & telephone expenses 79,050 61,857
License fees 10,02,000 10,02,000
Safety & security expense 8,93,569 8,60,138
Corporate social responsibility expenses 67,14,999 90,20,043
Shared service cost 9,333,665 9,16,436
Other general expenses 9,37,640 11,02,990
3.87,27.700 3,81,52,842

NOTE: 24 - Tax Expense

For the Year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2020 31st March,2019
Current Tax 6,00,83,841 6,68,71,079
Deferred Tax (5,55,30,435) (6,03,38,467)
Deferred tax (recoverable)/ payable in future tariff 5,566,30,435 6,03.38.467
6,00,83,841 6,68,71,079
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25 Financial Instruments:

The Fair Values of the financial assets and liabllities are included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

+ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable thputs for the asset or liability

As at 31st March, 2020 Carrying :mount n Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised cost::

Investment in Government Securities 12,32,67,268 13.36,28,932 13,36,28,932 -
Security Deposit 13,92,410 13,92,410 - 13,892,410
Trade receivables 12,02,81,619 12,02,81,619 -
Cash and cash equivalents 9,46,726 9.46,726 - -
Interest Accrue on Investment 15,03,045 15,03,045 - -
Unbilled Revenue 48,63,328 48,63,328 - -
Total 25,22,54,396 26,26,16,059 13,36,28,932 13,92,410
Financial assets at Fair Value through

P&L

Investment in Mutuai Fund 15,79,50,926 15,79,50,926 15.79,50,926 -
Total 15,79,50,926 15,79,50,926 15,79,50,926 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised

r.ost:

Borrowings 93,43,73,044 93,43,73,044 -

Current maturities of long-term debt 20,70,84,667 20,70,84,667 -

Interest accrued but not due on

borrowings 85,44,813 85,44,813 -

Revenue adjustments towards true-up 1,81,93,769 1,81,93,769 -

Trade Payable 86.66.693 86,66,693 - -
Total 1,17,68,62,986 1,17,68,62,986 i b
As at 31st March, 2019 Carrying ;‘m°“"t ™ Fairvalue |Level1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at amortised cost::

Investment in Government Securities 10,85.65,520 11,18,50,729 11,18,50,729 -
Security Deposit 12,96,834 12,96,834 - 12,96,834
Trade receivables 15,90,24,590 s : =
Cash and cash equivalents 40,53,937 - - -
Interest Accrue on Investment 11,96,422 - -
Unbilled Revenue 1,42,90,743 - - -
Total 28,84,28,046 11,31,47,563 11,18,50,729 12,96,834

|Financial assets at Fair Value through

P&L

Investment in Mutual Fund 15,35,84,976 15,3584 976 15,35,84 976 -
Total 15,35.84,976 15,35.84.976 15,35.84.976 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised

cost:

Borrowings 1,53,69.34,546 1,53,69,34,546 - -
Current maturities of fong-term debt 20,69,10,591 20.69,10,591 - -
Trade Payable 59,16,303 = .
Total 1,74,97,61,440 -
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26 Financial Risk Management Objectives & Policies

Capital management

The Company manages its capital with the primary objective of maximising the return to stakeholders. The Company
operates in a regulated environment, the capital gearing/structuring in relation to the Company's electricity transmission
business has been approved under MERC reguiations. Following commencement of the Company's transmission business
and generation of revenues determined as per approved MERC tariff regulations (the said revenues inclusive of debt
servicing), the net debt of the Company has been reducing following repayment of debt

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows

. As at As at
— 31st March. 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Debt (i) 1,14 14,57 711 1,74,38,45,137
Cash and cash equivalents 9,46,726 40,53,937
Net debt 1,14,05,10,985 1,73,97,91,200
Total equity 2,15,49,60,803 1,87.34,29,196
Net debt to equity ratio 0.53 0.93

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings (excluding derivative and contingent consideration).

Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of
financial instrument as a result of change in interest rates, exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk
sensitive instruments. As regards the future earnings from the Company's business of providing transmission services. the
same is as determined pursuant to the MERC tariff regulations based on the cost of providing the transmission services
plus a fixed post tax return on eyuity of 15,8% upon the Company mainldining lhe conliacted availability of Uansmission
line services. The Company is not exposed to significant market risks as regards the risk of loss of future earnings from its
business of transmission services. As regards market risks attributable to all market risks sensitive financial instruments,
the same is closely monitored by the Risk Management Committee to determine appropriate mitigation plan as appropriate
from time to time.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company's fong-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Company revenue is regulated by MERC Regulation where in company's revenue includes Interest on loan. The rate of
interest considered by regulation is the weighted average rate of interest computed on the basis of the actual loan portfolio.
The following table provides a break-up of the Company's fixed and floating rate loan portfolio:
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. As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars 2020 2013
Fixed rate borromings - -
Floating rate borrowings 1.14.14.57.711 1.74,38,45.137
Total borrowings 1,14,14,57,711 1.74,38,45.137

Credit risk management:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Company.

Credit risk is minimal due to the fact that the customer base largely consists of Distribution companies, the amount
recoverable from whom are as determined as per MERC order

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with senior management, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities. by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides detail regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date

Particulars < 1year 1-5 years > 5 years
: o i Total Amount in T
|Einancial liabilities
Long term borrowings 20,70,84,667 83,60,00,000 9,83,73,044 1.14,14, 57,711
Interes} accrued but not due on 85.44,813
borrowings
Esvenue adjustments towards true- 1.81,93,769
Trade Payable 86,66,693
Total Financial Liabilities 24,24,89,942 83,60,00,000 9,83,73,044 1,14,14,57,711
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Trade Receivables

The average credit period of Transmission Income is 30 days. Surcharge receivable towards delayed receipt of
payment for Transmission services rendered by the company is accounted in the period during which such
surcharge is approved by MERC

Trade receivables include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Company has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Company does not
generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right of
offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.

Age of receivables:

(Amountin T}
Particulars As at 31st March,| As at 31st March,
2020 2019

Within the credit period 6,54,11,818 5,59,57,290
1-30 days past due 5,48,40,617 4,59,45,663
31-60 days past due 29,186
61-90 days past due
91-180 days past due
181-365 days past due
More than one year - 5,71.21,637
Total 12,02,81,619 15,90,24,590

Earnings per share:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of

Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations,

Particulars

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2019

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (%)

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic & diluted EPS
Earning per share-Basic

Earning per share-Diluted

28,13,73,373
13,75,00,000
2,05
2.05

24,10,23,593
13,75,00,000
1.75
1.75

Remuneration to Auditors (inclusive of tax):

(Amount in )

Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
As Auditor 6,19,500 5,90,000
For Taxation Matters 1,18,000 1,18,000
For Certification Service 1,77,000 1,77,000
Total 9,14,500 8,85,000
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30A Deferred tax balances:

The followinig is the analysis of deferred tax assets/{liabilities; presantad in the balance sheet:

Amount in #

Particulars

As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities net of recoverable in future tariff
Deferred tax assets net of recoverable in future tariff

Total - -

. N Recognised As at 31st March,
Particulars As at 1st April, 2019 In profit or loss 2020
Deferred tax (llabilitles)/assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment {29,05,42,868) (29,83,367) {29,35,26,236)
FVTPL financial assets 2,02,975 (2,02,975) -
MAT Credit Entittemnent 56,13,84,276 5,56,07,359 61,69,91,635
Recoverable in Future Tariff (27,10.44.383) (5,24,21,016) (32,34,65,400)
Total - - -
Recognised As at 31st March,
Partlculars As at 1st Aprll, 2018 In profit o loss 2019
Deferred tax (liabllitles)/assets in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment (29,03,94,519) (1,48,350) (29,05,42,868)
FVTPL financial assets 1,77,399 25,577 2,02,975
MAT Credit Entitlement 50,09,23,036 6,04,61,240 56,13,84,276
Recoverable in Future Tariff (21.07,05,916) (6,03,38,467) (27.10.44.383)

Total

30B Income tax:
The incoms tax expense for

Partlculars

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st March,

March, 2020 2019

Profit before tax 34,14,57,214 30,78,94,672
Enacted tax rate 29.120%) 29.120%
Income tax expense 9,94,32,341 8,96,58,928
Tax effect due to exempt Income
Effect of non deductible expenses 19,55,408 35,14,723
Tax effect due to tax holiday (9,68,34,342) (9,26,22,948)
Recoverable in Future Tariff 5,55,30,435 6,63,20,375

(3,93.48.500) (2,27,87,850)
Income tay nses recognised In proflt & loss account 6,00,83,841 6.68.71.079

The Company have, basis the impact assessment of the option given under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to pay income tax at 22% plus
applicable surcharge and cess subject to certain conditions, decided to continue with the existing tax structure until utilization of their respective accumulated

minimum altemative tax (MAT) credit.

31 Detalls of Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:

Year ended 31st

Year ended 31st March,

Particulars March, 2020 2019

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 67,14,999 90,20,043

Amount spent during the year on :

(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset 16,70,669 67,02,097

{ii) On purchase other than (i above 50.44,330 23,17,946
67,14.999 90,20,043

Total
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32 Employee benefit plans:

A. Provident fund:

The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for qualifying employees. Under the scheme,
the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits,

As per Ind AS 19 on "Employee Benefits”. employer established provident fund trusts are treated as defined benefit plans, since
the Company is obliged to meet interest shortfall. if any, with respect to covered employees. According to the defined benefit
obligation of interest rate guarantee on exempted provident fund in respect of employees of the Company as at 31st March
2020 is 8.50 % and hence no provision is required to be provided for in the books of accounts towards the guarantee given for
notified interest rates

Company’s contribution to provident fund recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of  0.05 crores (for the year ended
31st March 2019: ¥ 0.04 crores) (included in note no. 20)

Actuarial assumptions made to determine interest rate guarantee on exempt provident fund liabilities are as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Discount Rate 8.84% 7.85%
Rate of return on assets 8.49% 8.88%
Guaranteed rate of return 8.50% 8.55%

B. Gratuity :

Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year
of service until the retirement age of 58, 60 and 62, without any payment ceiling. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable
under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years

Under the Compensated absences plan. leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the
Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation, at the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of
leave days.

The defined benefit pension plans requires contributions from employees. Contributions are in the following two forms; one is
based on the number of years of service and the other one is based on a fixed percentage of salary of the employees

The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate delermined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting penod on government bond yields: if the returm on plan
asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in
aguity secunties and debtl instruments.

Investment risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an
inzrease in the return on the plan's debt investments.

The present value of the defined beanefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both dunng and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Interest risk

Longevity risk

The presant value of the defined henefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

Salary risk participants. As such, an increase In the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an
external insurance company. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
March 31, 2020 by M/S K. A, Pandit Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation are, as follows:

Particulars {Amount in T)
Defined benefit obligation at 1 April 2018 7,19,571
Interest cost 56,342
Current service cost 1,23,138
Benefits paid/Transferred Net 2,30,878
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 55,132
Defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2019 11,85,061
Interest cost 80,011
Current service cost 92,316
Benefits paid/Transferred Net 7.76,527
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss (1,94 630)
Defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2020 19.39.285
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2020:

[Amount in ¥

Defined Benefit

Fair Value of Plan

particulars Obligation assets Benefit Liability
Openingﬁlance as on 01st April

Gratuity cost 2019 11,85,061 1,77.361 10,07,700

charged to profit |Service cost 92.316 92,316

or loss Net interest expense 80,011 13,816 66,195
Sub-total included in profit or loss 1,72,327 13.816 1.58.511
Benefits paid/Transferred 7.76 527 7,76,527
Return on plan assets (excluding

Remeasurement |amounts included in net interest

(gains)/losses in |expense) - (2,896) 2,896

other Actuarial changes arising from

comprehensive |changes in demographic assumptions 15,479 15,479

income Actuarial changes arising  from
changes in financial assumptions 77.757 77,757
Experience adjustments (2,87,866) (2,87,866)
Sub-total included in OCI {1.94.630) (2.896) (1,91.734)
Contributions by empioyer -
Closing Balance as on 31st March 19,39,285 1,838,281 17,51,004

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at

31st March, 2019:

Defined Benefit

Fair Value of Plan

2019

Particulars - Obligation assets Benefit Liability
Opening Balance as on 1st April

Gratuity cost 2018 7.19,571 1,65,761 5,563,810

charged to profit |Service cost 1,23,138 - 1,23,138

or loss Net interest expense 56,342 12,979 43,363
Sub-total included in profit or loss 1.79.480 12,979 1.66.501
Benefits paid 2,30,878 2,30,878
Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest (1.379) 1379

Remeasurement |expense)

gains/(losses) in

other . Actuarial changes arising  from -

Fomprehenswe changes in demographic assumptions

Rl Actuarial changes arising from 5118 5 5118
changes in financial assumptions ' '
Experience adjustments 50,014 - 50,014
Sub-total included in OCI 55,132 = 55,132
Contributions by employer -
Closing Balance as on 31st March 11,85,061 1,77,361 10,07,700

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuit

¢ for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2019

Discount rate:
India gratuity plan

India gratuity plan

Future salary increases:

%

%

6.89

6.00

6.00

A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown bel

ow:

Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit obligation

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2020

1% increase

Discount rate

1% decrease

1% increase

Future salary increases

1% decrease

(85714)

1.01,203

1.01.090

(87.134)
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33 Related party disclosure:
A) List of Related Parties :
Related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year
| Holding Company:
1 JSW Energy Limited (Holding Company)

[ Enterprises over which key management personnei and relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence:

| Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited
2 JSW Global Business Solutions Limited
3 JSW Foundation

n Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Ravindra Dinkarrao Chavan — Chairman

1
2 Mr Yatish Kumar Chhabra -Managing Director
3 Mr. Jyoti Kumar Agarwal - Direclor
4 Mr. Sharad Mahendra - Director
f Mr Sanjay Krishnarao Taksande (w.e.f 18lh April, 2019) - Director
G Ms. Rupa Devi Singh (w.e.f 3rd April, 2020) - Independent Director
v Mr Jaykishan Birla - Chief Financial officer (wef 1st November 2018 upto 14th December 2019)
8 Mr. Krishnaraj Nair - Chief Financial Officer (wef 3rd February 2020)
] Mr Narendra Rahalkar- Company Secretary
Amount in %

B) Transaction during the year Yeal;recnhd‘ezd[]:;st Yeh:;:cnhf;%;;;ﬂ
1 Service Received

Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited 47,90.108 43,59,930
2 Rent Paid/(received)

JSW Energy Limiled 1,000 1.000
3 Business Support Services Paid/{Received)

JSW Global Business Solutions Limited 9,33.666 9,16,436
4 Reimbursement received from / (paid to)

JSW Energy Limited 45,797 (14,68,911)
5 Donations/CSR Expenses

JSW Foundation 22,51,261 -

Amount in ¥

C) Closing Balances 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
1 Trade (Payables) / Receivables

Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (12,16,818) (10,94,040)

JSW Energy Limited 22.17.009 -

JSW Global Business Solution Limited (2,81,311) (1.49.859)
2 Deposit With

JSW Energy Limited 50.00.000 50.00.000
Note:

i) No amounts in respect of related parties have been writlen off / written back during the year, nor has any provision been made for doubtful debts /

receivables during the year, excepl as discussed above

ii) Related party relalionships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors,
iii) Related party transactions have been disclosed on basis of value of transactions in terms of the respective contracts.

iv) Terms and conditions of sales and purchases: the sales and purchases transactions among the related parties are in the ordinary course of business based
on normal commercial terms, conditions, market rates and memorandum of understanding signed with the related parties. For the year ended 31st March,

2020, the Company has not recorded any loss allowances for transactions between the related parties.

34 Approval of financial statements:

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 7th May 2020.

35 Disclosure under Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act:
The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act, 2006
(MSMED Act), based on the available information with the Company are as under:

SI No Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
1 Principal amount outstanding = =
2 Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -
3 Interest due on (2) above and the unpaid interest = =
4 Interest paid on all delayed pavments under the MSMED Act. - -
5 Pavment made bevond the appointed day during the vear - -
6 Interest due and pavable for the period of delay other than (4) above - =
7 Interest accried and remaining unpaid - -
8 Amount of further interest remaining due cheeding years - -
Y
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Operating segment:

The managing director of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments
The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however only for one
segment viz. "Transmission Services" Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating
Segments"

Contingency Reserve:

The Company has set aside an amount of X 13,797,077 (Previous year ¥ 13,797,077) as Contingency Reserve' to be used for the purpose of future
losses, which may arise from uninsured risks, or as determined by the board as per Clause 50.7 of MERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations,
2005.

Disclosure of COVID-19 on operations:

The outbreak of Covid 19 pandemic globally including in India has led to a nationwide lockdown. The Company’s initial assessment of impact of Covid 19
on its operation and financial results is expected to be minimal as ensuring availability of transmission system has been categorised as an essential
service. The Company has a comfortable liquidity position and does not anticipate any material financial or operational issues in the short term as well as
on a long term basis.

Contingent liabilities & Commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities & commitments to be disclosed by the Company.

The Company is yet ta receive balance confirmations in respect of certain financial assets & financial liabilities. The Management does not expect any
material difference affecting the current year's financial statements due to the same.

Previous year's figure has been re-grouped/ re-arranged, wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.
Signatures to notes (1 to 41) For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Chairman Manhging Director
DIN: 06537224 DIN: 07971204
Lo te
Place : Mumbai Narendra Rahalkar Krishnara,

Date : 7th May,2020 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of
JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and

the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2021, and its profits,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information.The Other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report,but does not include the
standalone financial statement and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Kolkata Mumbai New Delhi Chennai Hyderabad Jaipur
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Based on the work we have performed, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope pf our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among othermatters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

CONTINUATION SHEET
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records.

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
inagreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure “B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

During the year, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors, except for
sitting fees.

{n) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. — Refer Note to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registxation No. —301051E

A.M. Hariharan
Place: Mumbai B Partner

Date: June 24%, 2021 Membership No. 38323
UDIN: 21038323AAAACI5266
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Annexure “A” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report to the members of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED of even date:

i. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment (fixed assets).

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner, over a period of three years. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) Based on the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

ii. The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the
year. As per the information and explanations given to us, discrepancies noticed on physical
verification between the physical stocks and bond records were not material.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to the companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act to the extent applicable, with
respect to the investments made and security provided.

v. No deposits have been accepted by the Company within the meaning of directives issued by R8I
(Reserve Bank of India) and Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and
Rules framed there under.

vi,  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section
148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by
the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
prescribed by the Central Government under sub- Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii, (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income- tax, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to the
Company with appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the rel0 dues of income tax, sales tax, service
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tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a bank and a financial
institution during the year. Further, the Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from
debenture holders and Government during the Year.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of Initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument) during the year or in the recent past. Based on the information and
explanations given to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which
the loans were obtained.

X, During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by
or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of such case by the management.

xi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

xii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3{xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xiii,  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standard (Refer Note 33 to the standalone
financial statements).

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent
past. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv,  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions prescribed under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons
connected with them during the year.
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xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934,
For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registyl No.—-301051E
A. M. Hariharan

Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: June 24, 2021 Membership No. 38323

UDIN: 21038323AAAACI5266
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Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report to the members of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED of even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3
of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal contro!l over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the 'standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity's assets that could
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements and (4) also provide us reasonable
assurance by the internal auditors through their internal audit reports given to the Company from
time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential Component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registraNon Ne" — 301051E

. Hariharan
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: June 24%, 2021 Membership No. 38323
UDIN: 21038323AAAACI5266




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021

{in #)
. As at As at
L BT Note | 3ist March, 2021 | [ 31st March. 2020
| ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets:
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Tangible assets 5 2,68,34,33,924 2,96,35,25,219
(b) Capital work in progress 94,82,989 15,46,565
(c) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 13,74,29,844 12,32,67,268
(i) Other financial assets 7 14,96,390 13,92,410
(d) Income tax assets (net) 21,83,856 21,83,856
(e) Other non-current assets 11 6,702 3,24,536
2,83,40,33,705 3,09,22,39,854
(2) Current assets:
(a) Inventories 8 61,65,848 43,48,062
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 9,06,84,380 15,79,50,926
(i) Trade receivables 9 9,07,27,398 5,48,69,803
(i) Unbilled revenue 5,41,68,558 7,02,75,144
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,74,79,947 9,46,726
(v) Other financial assets 7 17,99,425 15,03,045
(c) Other current assets 11 19,22,884 17,61,525
26,29,48,440 29,16,55,231
TOTAL ASSETS 3,09,69,82,145 3.38,38,95.085
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES .
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12A 1,37,50,00,000 1,37,50,00,000
(b) Other equity 12B 1,03,17,02,618 77,99,60,803
2,40,67,02,618 2,15,49,60,803
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities:
(a) Financial liabitities
- Borrowings 13 56,48,08,840 93,43,73,044
{b) Provisions 14 18,684,629 21,71,690
56,66,73,469 93,65,44,734
(2) Current liabilities:
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 10,61,30,284 -
(i) Trade payables due to 15
- Micro & Small Enterprise 2,79,767 -
- Other Than Micro & Small Enterprise 47,44,036 86,66,693
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 1,04,11,599 23,38,23,251
(b) Other current liabilities 17 8,56,955 4,77,72,011
(c) Rrovisions 14 3,08,118 2,58,665
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 8.75.299 18.,68,928
12,36,06.058 29,23,89,548
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,09.69.82.145 3,38,38,95,085

See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Lodha & Co.

P |

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Chavan
Director
DIN: 06537224
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Narendra-Rafakar

Company Secretary
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Peddana Ramayanam '

Managing Director
DIN: 08923138

Krishnaraj Nair

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

{In )
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Note ended ended
31st March, 2021 | | 31st March,2020
| Revenue from operations 18 71,71,73,011 80,38,29,606
Il Otherincome 19 1,40,77,820 1,56,36,698
Total income (I+l) 73,12,50,831 81,94,66,304
Il Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 20 1,05,74,268 1,44,40,951
Finance costs 21 8,32,31,163 13,36,03,168
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 29,13,40,150 29,12,37,271
Other expenses 23 4,07,36,157 3,87,27,700
Total Expenses (ill) 42,58,81,738 47,80,09,090
IV Profit before tax (I+1I-111) 30,53,69,093 34,14,57,214
V Tax Expenses: 24
Current tax 5,37,78,525 6,00,83,841
Deferred tax (4,96,79,063) (5,55,30,435)
Deferred tax payable in future tariff 4,96,79,063 5,55,30,435
5,37,78,525 6,00,83,841
VI Profit after tax for the Period (IV - V) 25,15,90,568 28,13,73,373
VIl Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) 1,83,267 1.91,734
- Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (32,020) (33,500)
VIll Total comprehensive income for the Period (VI - Vii) 25,17,41,815 28,15,31,607
IX Earnings per share of ~ 10 each 28
Basic 1.83 2.05
Diluted 1.83 2.05
See Accompanving Notes To The Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Lodha & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S
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3

Peddana Ramayan'ém
Managing Director
DIN: 08923138
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( :s: \Fu\gu
Ravintra Chavan

Director
DIN: 06537224

~

Kris!(ral Nair

Chief Financial Officer
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NJ::E‘M ‘R/a?:’aﬁa’r

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021




A: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

|Balance as at 1st April,2019

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2020

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2021

1,37,50,00,000

1,37,50,00,000

1,37,50,00,000

|B: OTHER EQUITY

. Other
Particulars Retained Earnings Contingency comprehensive Total Other Equity
Reserveit .
income
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 38,29,57,219 11,56,29,122 (1,57,145) 49,84,29,196
Profit for the year 28,13,73,373 - - 28,13,73,373
Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT
Regulation 2015 # (1,37,97,077) 1,37,97,077 - -
IRemeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) - - 1,58,234 1,58,234
|Balance as at 31st March, 2020 65,05,33,515 12,94,26,199 1,089 77,99,60,803
|Balance as at 1st April, 2020 65,05,33,515 12,94,26,199 1,089 77,99,60,803
lProfit for the year 25,15,90,568 - - 25,15,90,568
|Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT (1,37,97,070) 1,37,97,070 . )
Regulation 2015 #
|Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) - - 1,51,247 1,51,247
|Balance as at 31st March, 2021 88,83,27,013 14,32,23,269 1,52,336 1,03,17,02,618

# Refer note 36
As per our attached Xeport of even date
For Lodha & Co.

Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ravindra Chavan
Director
DIN: 06537224

| _o Ao
Naﬁ%‘ﬂfm

Company Secretary

K&\\ .ﬂ—(?l.iq_, .%jk

Peddana Ramaya/na\m

Managing Director
DIN; 08923138
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Krishnaraj Nair

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(In %)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the Year ended
31st March, 2020

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest income & gain on sale of current investments
Provision no longer required written back
Loss on write off of property, plant and equipment
Net loss arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL
Provision for doubtful debts
Finance costs
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for
(Increase) / Decrease Trade & other receivables
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade payables & other liabilities
Decrease in Inventories
Direct Taxes paid
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, plant and equipment, CWIP (net of capital expenditure)
Interest income & gain on sale of current investments

Long term investments

Current investments

Other assets

NET CASH FLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings ( Repayments) (net)
Finance costs paid
Dividend (includes tax on dividend)
NET CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT END OF THE PERIOD

30,53,69,093 34,14,57,214
29,13,40,150 29,12,37,271
(1,39,55,555) (1,56,36,698)
(1,22,265) -
54,59,373 -
22,608 :
81,874 ’
8,32,31,163 13,36,03,168
67,14,26,441 75,06,60,955
(2,00,98,222) 3,48,23,370
(6,69,99,645) 23,89,759
(18,17,786) (2,96,814)|
(5.48,04,175) (5.87,13,950)
52,77,06,613 72,88,63,320
(1,56,19,366) (7,87,127)
1,36,36,567 1,56,36,698
(1,41,62,576) (1,47,01,748)
6,72,66,547 (43,65,950)
# (3,06,623)
511,21,172 (45,24,750)

(47,05,18,588)
(9,17,75,976)

(60,23,87,426)
(12,50,58,355)

(66,22,94,564)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

(72,74,45,781)

1,65,33,221 (31,07,211)
9,46,726 40,53,937
1,74,79,947 9,46,726

See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements

|Notes :

1) The above cash flow statement has been prepared by using the indirect method as per IND AS 7- " Statement of Cash Flows"
2) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to current year classification.

As per our attachedjeport of even date

For Lodha & Co.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Jaigad PowerTransco Limited (the Company), which is the joint venture of JSW Energy Limited and Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Company Limited with 74% and 26% share holding respectively has been set up to construct, operate and maintain 55 Kilo
meters of one Jaigad—New Koyna 400 KV double circuit (Quad) transmission line and 110 kilo meters of one Jaigad-karad 400 KV double
circuit (Quad) transmission line.

The construction of 55 Kilo meters Jaigad-New —New Koyna &110 kilo meters of Jaigad-karad 400 KV double circuit (Quad) transmission line
has been completed and has been declared for commercial operations with effect from 7th July, 2010 & 2nd December 2011
respectively. The registered office of the Company is located at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra.

Applicability of new Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'), amendments and interpretations:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020, has notified the
following major amendments, which became applicable with effect from 1st April, 2020.

Amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 116 for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide practical relief,
subject to certain conditios, to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a
practical expedient to Ind AS 116. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent
concession is a lease maodification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the
COVID-19-related rent concession the same way it would account for the change applying Ind AS 116 if the change were not a lease
modification.

The adoption of this amendments has not had any impact on the disclosures or reported amounts in these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges during the
period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging instruments affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a
result of the on-going interest rate benchmark reforms.

The adoption of these amendments has not had material impact on the disclosures or reported amounts in these financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 103- Business combinations

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 103 for the first time in the current year. The amendments clarify that while
businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive process
has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The amendments are
applied prospectively to all business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1st April, 2020.

The adoption of these amendments has not had any impact on the disclosures or reported amounts in these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 - Definition of “Material”

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments make the
definition of material in Ind AS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in Ind ASs. The
concept of 'obscuring’ material information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from 'could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be expected to influence'. The
definition of material in Ind AS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in Ind AS 1. In addition, the MCA amended
other Standards that contain the definition of 'material' or refer to the term ‘material’ to ensure consistency.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on its evaluation of materiality in relation to the financial statements.




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New and revised Ind ASs in issue but not yet effective:
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following new and revised Ind ASs that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

. Amendment to Ind AS:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Notification dated 18th June, 2021 has issued new Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Amendment Rules, 2021. These rules are applicable with immediate effect from the date of the said notification. Major amendments notified
in the notification are provided below:

(a) Ind AS 116 | Leases — The amendment extends the benefits of the COVID 19 related rent concession that were introduced in the previous
year (which allowed lessees to recognize COVID 19 related rent concessions as income rather than as lease modification) from 30th June,
2021 to 30th June, 2022.

(b) Ind AS 109 | Financial Instruments — The amendment provides a practical expedient for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which is
one of the criteria for being eligible to measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changes in the financial assets that may arise as a
result of interest Rate Benchmark Reform. An additional temporary exception from applying hedge accounting is also added for Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform.

(c) Ind AS 101 | Presentation of Financial Statements — The amendment substitutes the item (d) mentioned in paragraph Bl as ‘Classification
and measurement of financial instruments'. The term ‘financial asset' has been replaced with ‘financial instruments’.

(d) Ind AS 102 | Share-Based Payment — The amendments to this standard are made in reference to the Conceptual Framework of Financial
Reporting under Ind AS in terms of defining the term ‘Equity Instrument’ which shall be applicable for the annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1st April, 2021.

(e) Ind AS 103 | Business Combinations — The amendment substitutes the definition of ‘assets' and ‘liabilities’ in accordance with the
definition given in the framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS for qualifying the
recognition criteria as per acquisition method.

(f) Ind AS 104 | Insurance Contracts — The amendment covers the insertion of certain paragraphs in the standard in order to maintain
consistency with IFRS 4 and also incorporates the guidance on accounting treatment for amendments due to Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform.

(9) Ind AS 105 | Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations — The amendment substitutes the definition of — “fair value
less costs to sell” with “fair value less costs of disposal’”.

(h) Ind AS 106 | Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources — The amendment has been made in reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards in respect of expenditures that shall not be recognized as exploration
and evaluation assets.

(i) Ind AS 107 | Financial Instruments: Recognition, Presentation and Disclosure — The amendment clarifies the certain additional disclosures
to be made on account of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform like the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from
financial instruments subject to interest rate benchmark reform; the entity's progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark
rates, and how the entity is managing the transition.

() Ind AS 111 | Joint Arrangements — In order to maintain consistency with the amendments made in Ind AS 103, respective changes have
been made in Ind AS 111.

(k) Ind AS 114 | Regulatory Deferral Accounts — The amendment clarifies that an entity may only change its accounting policies for the
recognition, measurement, and impairment & derecognition of regulatory deferral account balances if the change makes the financial
statements more relevant to the economic decision-making needs of users and no less reliable.

() Ind AS 115 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers — Certain amendments have been made in order to maintain consistency with
number of paragraphs of IFRS 15.

(m) Ind AS 8 | Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — In order to maintain consistency with the amendments
made in Ind AS 114 and to substitute the word ‘Framework’ with the ‘Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting in Ind AS', respective
changes have been made in the standard.

(n) Ind AS 16 | Property, Plant and Equipment —The amendment has been made by substituting the words “Recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” with “Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use”.

(0) Ind AS 34 | Interim Financial Reporting —The amendments to this standard are made in reference to the conceptual framework of
Financial Reporting in Ind AS.

(p) Ind AS 37 | Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment substitutes the definition of the term ‘Liability’ as
provided in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards

(q) Ind AS 38 | Intangible Assets — The amendment substitutes the definition of the term ‘Asset’ as provided in the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards.

The Company is evaluating the impact of these amendments.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Il. Amendment to Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013:
On 24th March, 2021, MCA through a notification, amended Schedule |if of the Companies Act, 2013, with effect from 1st April, 2021. Key
amendments relevant for the Company are:

(a) Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

(b) Current maturities of long-term borrowings should be disclosed separately within borrowings instead of earlier disclosure requirement
under Other Financial Liabilities.

(c) Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of
the current reporting period.

(d) Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

(e) Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in progress and intangible asset under
development.

(f) Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility, undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency.

(g) Disclosure of specified ratios along with explanation for items included in numerator and denominator and explanation for change in any
ratio is excess of 25% compared to preceding year.

(h) If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure
of details of where it has been used.

(i) Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance
with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters,
directors, key managerial personnel and related parties and details of benami property heid.

The Company is evaluating the impact of these amendments.

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements") have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. The Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its
meeting held on June 24, 2021.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Financial Statements have been followed. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian
Rupees ('INR") which is functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest crore, except otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates & Judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the
financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based
on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be
reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the Company for preparation of financial statements is described in note
4.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use.

Transmission system assets are considered “ready for their intended use”, for the purpose of capitalization, after test charging/ successful
commissioning of the system/ assets and on completion of stabilization period wherever technically required.

The cost of an addition or extension to an existing asset which is of a capital nature and which becomes an integral part of the existing asset
is usually added to its gross book value. Any addition or extension, which has a separate identity and is capable of being used after the
existing asset is disposed of, is accounted for separately.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

In case of commissioned assets, work against deposits/works contracts where final settiement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected;
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in the year of final settlements.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantie or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its
useful life, the present value of the estimate cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition
or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

Cost of regular comprehensive maintenance work (such as major overhaul) are capitalized as a separate component if they satisfy the
recognition criteria.

Other Intangible assets :-

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as Intangible assets based on materiality, accounting prudence and
significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation & amortisation:
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided, pro-rata for the period of use, by the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the provisions of Part B
of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease.

Software is depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.

When the historical cost of an asset has undergone a change due to price adjustment, exchange fluctuation or similar factors the
depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided prospectively over the residuai useful life of the asset.

“Useful Life" in relation to a transmission system is 35 Years as defined in Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulation 2019
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3.9

3.10

JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Work-in-progress and Pre-operative Expenses during Construction Period

Capital Work-in-Progress includes expenditure during construction period incurred on projects under implementation treated as pre-operative
expenses pending allocation to the assets. These expenses are apportioned to the respective fixed assets on their completion /
commencement of commercial production.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits which are short term and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Inventories:

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase price, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition:
Transmission Income is accounted for on accrual basis for the period of operation of the transmission line computed based on the approved
Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR) or where the ARR is not approved, on the basis of the tariff order.

Where neither the ARR nor the tariff order are approved, transmission income is accounted as per Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations 2015(MERC Regulations) where under, transmission income is computed by taking the total
costs, contingency provision and Return on Equity (ROE) @ 15.5% on post-tax basis and after grossing up with the applicable income taxes
for the purpose of revenue.

Any difference between the total annual revenue recognised as aforesaid and the annual revenue as approved by MERC in respect of ARR /
Truing up Petition filed is adjusted / recognised during the accounting period in which approval of the ARR / Truing up Petition, as the case
may be, is received from MERC.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest income:
Surcharge receivable towards delayed receipt of payment for Transmission services rendered by the company is accounted in the period
during which such surcharge is approved by MERC.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currency transactions:

In preparing the financial statements of Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

Employee benefits:

a. Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

b. Long term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation using
projected unit credit method.

c. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Defined contribution plans:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit retirement benefits plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, and spread
over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in
respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. Actuarial valuations being carried
out at the end of each annual reporting period for defined benefit plans.

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of resignation/
superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for the every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

~7 A
* I\MU B}\I-U‘I}]*
G\

%



3.13

JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share-based payment arrangements:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end
of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust for providing share-based payment to its employees. The Trust is used as a vehicle for
distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The Trust buys shares of the Parent Company from the
market, for giving shares to employees. The Company treats the Trust as its extension and shares held by the Trust are treated as treasury
shares

Taxation:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of
profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT') credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company
wilt pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

The income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events.
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Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares
would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as
at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Provisions , Contingencies and commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible
or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Commitments inciude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

Financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other
than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except
for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

» on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

» it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are
included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at
FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an
individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward-looking.

The Company's trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on
trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for
recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the
lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.

The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12-month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The
expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its
initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit
risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured
at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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3.17 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method or at fair value.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a
loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Einancial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

» it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

» on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

» it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability heid for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

» such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise

arise;
« the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and

information about the Companying is provided internally on that basis; or
» it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the '‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss. .

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the
'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such change are evident to external parties. A change in the business model
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in the business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Classification Revised Classification Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost
Amortised cost FVTPL and fair value is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

FVPTL Amortised cost based on new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost
Amortised cost FVTOCI and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCl is adjusted
FVTOCI Amortised cost against fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured
at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
FVTPL FVTOCI new gross carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
FVTOCI FVTPL in OCl is reclassified to statement of profit and
loss at the reclassification date.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Leases :

The Company as lessor:
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
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Lease classification is made at the inception date and is reassessed only if there is a lease modification. Changes in estimates (for example,
changes in estimates of the economic life or of the residual value of the underlying asset), or changes in circumstances (for example, default
by the lessee), do not give rise to a new classification of a lease for accounting purposes. For a modification to a finance lease, if the lease
would have been classified as an operating lease had the modification been in effect at the inception date, lease modification is accounted as
a new lease from the effective date of modification and carrying amount of underlying asset is measured as the net investment in the lease
immediately before the effective date of the lease modification.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Company as lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether : (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset; (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (jii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to
all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of
low value assets (i.e. below Rupees five lac). For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liability (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not
accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

For a contract that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Change in accounting estimates

The effect of change in an accounting estimate shall be recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss accounts except where
estimates relates to assets and liabilities or an equity it shall be recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or
equity.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 3 above, the Company is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision
affects current and future periods.
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Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Service concession arrangements

The management have assessed applicability of Annexure D of Ind AS 115: 'Service Concession Arrangements' with respect to transmission
assets. In assessing the applicability, they have exercised significant judgment in relation to the underlying ownership of the assets, terms of
Licence, ability to determine prices, useful lives of the assets. Based on detailed evaluation, transmission assets do not meet the criterion for
recognition as service concession arrangements.

Regulatory deferral accounts
The Company has not adopted Ind as 114 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ since in previous GAAP, Guidance Note on Accounting for the Rate

Regulated Activities, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) was not adopted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent
upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external
factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply,
economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that
are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not recognised.

Fair value measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. All assets and liabilities for which fair value measured or disclosed
in financial statements are categorized with in the fair value hierarchy described as Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 as below:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

for the purpose of fair value disclosure, the company determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the assets and liabilities and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Tax

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect of any period is dependent upon the interpretation of
the relevant tax rules. Whilst an assessment must be made of deferred tax position of each entity within the Company, these matters are
inherently uncertain until the position of each entity is agreed with the relevant tax authorities.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|INOTE: 11 - Other assets

31st March, 2021

As at As at
INOTE: 6 - Investments 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Investments carried at:
A_ Designated as fair value through profit and loss
I. Quoted Investments
(a) Investments in Mutual Funds 9,06,84,380 . 15,79,50,926
[Mutual Fund Name
SBI Mutual Fund 9,06,84,380
|B. Investments carried at amortised cost
|. Unquoted Investments
{a) Investments in government securities - 13,74,29,844 - 12,32,67,268
9,06,84,380 | 13,74,29,844 15,79,50 926 12,32,67,268
Note
Quoted Investments
Book value 9,06,84,380 - 15,79,50,926
|Market value 9,06,84,380 - 15,79.50,926
Unquoted Iinvestments
Book value - 13,74,29,844 12,32.67.268
As at As at
NOTE: 7 - Other financial assets 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Carried at amortised cost
(a) Security deposits with others
- Unsecured, considered good
Deposits 14,96,390 - 13,92,410
|b) Interest receivable
Interest accrued on investments 17,99,425 - 15,03,045 -
17,99,425 14,986,390 15,03,045 13,92,410
As at As at
NOTE: 8 - Inventories 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Stores and spares 61,65,848 - 43,48,062 -
(valued at cost and certified by the management)
651.65.848 - 43,48,062 -
As at As at
NOTE: 9 - Trade receivables 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Nan Current Current Non Current
b) considered good - Unsecured, 9,07,27,398 - 5,48,69,803 -
9,07,27,398 - 5.48.69.803 -
As at As at
NOTE: 10 - Cash and cash equivalents 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
|Balance with banks
In current accounts 1,74.79,947 9,46,726 -
1,74,79,947 9,46,726 -
As at As at

31st March,2020

Current Non Current Current Non Current

Capital Advances - 6,702 - 3,24,536
Prepayments 19,22,884 - 17,61,525 -

19.22.884 6.702 17.61,525 3,24,536




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES ACCOMPANYING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

150,000,000 Equily Shares of 10 each
{Previous year 150,000,000 equity shares of
Issued, subscribed and pald-up:
137,500,000 Equity Shares of 10 each
{Previous year 137,500,000 equity shares of = 10 each)

10 each)

As at As at
NOTE: 12A 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
[Equity share capital
Authorised:

1,50,00,00,000

1,50,00,00,000

1,37,50,00,000

e —
1,37,60,00,000

1,37,50,00,000

1,37,60,00,000

Detalls of shareholding

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March,2020

a) Detalls of shareholding by Holding, Subsidiary or Comg No. of Shares No. of Shares
JSW Energy Limited {Holding Compary) 10,17,50,000 10,17,50,000
b) Details of shareholding more than §%
JSW Energy Limited (Holding Company) 10,17,50,000 10,17,50,000
74% T4%
Maharashtra State Eleclricity Transmission Company Limited 3,57,50,000 3,67,50,000
26% 26%|

c) Terms & Rights attached to equity shares

(General Meeting.

propartion to the shareholding

d) The reconcllilation of the number of shares ding and the

of share caplital Is set out below:

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March,2020

No. of Shares

No_of Shares

(1) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of *10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pay dividend in Indian rupeses. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the Shareholders in lhe ensuing Annual

|5 ) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive he remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in

Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,75,00,000 13,75,00,000
Issued during the year - <
Balance as at the end of the year 13,75,00,000 13,75.00.000
NOTE: 12B - Other equity
L J— Other
Particulars 4 comprehensi Total Other Equity
Earnings Reserve# e
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 38,29,67,219 11,56,29,122 (1,67,145) 49,84,29,196
|Profit for the vear 28,13,73,373 -~ - 28,13,73 373
Transfarrad to Conlingancy Reserve as per MERC MYT Ragulation 2015 (1,37,97,077) 1,37.97.077 * *
Remeasurements of the defined benefit llabilities / (asset) - - 1,568,234 1.58.234
66,06,33,515 12,94,26,199 1,089 77,99.60,803
Prafit for the vear 25,15,90,568 - - 25,15,90,568
Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT Regulalion 2015 (1.37.97.070) 1,37.97.070 = =
1.51.247 1,561,247
88.83.27.013 14,32,23.269 162,336 1,03,17.02,618




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTE: 13 As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Financial liabilities - Borrowings Current Non Current Current Non Current
Secured Borrowing
Term Loans:
From Banks - 27,67,39,377 11,07,71,256 49,74,10,630
From financial institutions - 29,17,48,739 9,82,28,744 44,10,89,370
- 56,84,88,116 20,90,00,000 93,85,00,000
Less : Unamortised borrowing cost - 36,79,276 19,15,333 41,26,956
Less : Current maturities of long term debt - - 20,70,84,667 -
(Included in note no 16)
- 56,48,08,840 - 93,43,73,044
From Banks:
Working Capital Demand Loan 10,61,30,284 - -
10,61,30,284 - - a
10,61,30,284 56,48,08,840 - 93,43,73,044

Details of Security for Term Loans:
First ranking charge on
(a) moveable assets

(b) on operating cash flows, commissions, revenue, receivables and interest in all the bank accounts including the trust and retention

accounts and intangible assets.

(c) all rights, title, interest benefits, claims, demands etc., in the Company's project documents, insurance contracts, letter of credit etc.

Terms of Repayment: ~ 220 Crore Term loan repayable in 52 structured quarterly instalment commencing from 30th Sept, 2017

Period of Repayment As at A2

31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
2-3 Years 25,70,00,000 41,80,00,000
4-5 Years 28,60,00,000 41,80,00,000
> 5 years 2,54,88,116 31,15,00,000




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
NOTE: 14 - Provistons 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Provisions for employee benefils 3,08,118 18,64,629 2,58,665 21,71.690
3,08,118 18,64,629 2,586,865 21,71,690
As at As at
INOTE: 16 - Trade Payables 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Total outstanding dues of Micro, small and medium enterprises # 2,79,767 = < L
Total oulstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, small and medium enlerprises 47,44,036 2 e E
50,23,603 - 86,868,693 =
# Refer Note 35 for dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises
As at As at
NOTE: 16 - Other financial llabllitles 31st March, 2021 31st March,2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
[Measured at amortised cost
(Current maturities of long term borrowings - - 20,70,84,667 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 85,44,813 -
(Creditors for capital supplies/services 87,07,462 -
Revenue adjustments towards true-up 17,04,147 - 1,81,93,769 -
1,04,11,599 - 23,38,23,251 -
Asat As at
NOTE:17 - Other llablitities 31st March, 2021 318t March,2020
Current Non Current Currant Non Current
lAdvance received from customers - - 4,68,19,425 -
Statutory dues 8,31,623 - 9,62,586 -
Other liabilities 25,332 = -
8,566,956 - 4.77,72,011 -




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INOTE: 18 - Revenue from Operations

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

|Revenue from transmission operations 70,06,83,389 80,52,39,831
Less: Impact due to Truing up provisions (1,64,89,622) 14,10,225
71,71,73,011 80,38,29.606

|NOTE: 19 - Other Income

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

1. Interest income

Interest on bank deposits
Delayed payment surcharge
Financial assets

2, Others

Other Misc.Income

Gain on sale of current investments

Net gain arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL
Provision no longer required written back

12,673 -

33 59,226

1,02,49,042 92,562,093

- 39,768

36,93,807 60,61,215

- 2,24,396
1,22,265 -

1,40,77,820 1,56,36,698

INOTE: 20 - Employee Benefits Expense

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

97,26,283 1,28,39,896
6,83,308 13,38,866
1,64,677 2,62.189

1,05,74,268 1,44,40,951

NOTE: 21 - Finance Costs

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

Interest expenses
i) Term loan
iiy Other interest expense

8,09,88,822 13.33.64,584
22,42 341 2,38,584
8,32,31,163 13,36,03,168

INOTE: 22 - Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

Eprecialion

29,13,40,150

29,12,37,271

29,13,40,150

29,12,37,271

INOTE: 23 - Other Expenses

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Rates & taxes

Insurance charges

Legal & other professional charges

Auditors remuneration

Travelling expenses

Corporate social responsibility expenses

Loss on property, plant and equipment written off
Net loss arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL
Safety & security expense

Shared Service Cost

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Other general expenses

7,30,084 6,63.629
1,77,67,794 1.70,10,347
13,65,204 26,05,664
6,78,725 4,31,396
18,78,435 42,76,272
9,48,997 9,27,171
26,17.414 20,67,118
67,00,000 67,14,999
54,59,373 -
22,608 -
945,413 8,93,569
6,37,497 9,33,665
81,874 -
9,02,739 22,03,870
4,07,36,157 3,87,27,700

NOTE: 24 - Tax Expense

For the Year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March,2020

Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax (recoverable)/ payable in future tariff

5,37,78,525 6,00,63,641
(4,96,79,063) (5,55,30,435)
4,96,79,063 5,55,30,435
5,37.78,525 6,00,83,841




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Financial Instruments:

The Fair Values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instruments could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access

at the measurement date;

+ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Total

As at 31st March, 2021 Carrying Amount | _ Fair Value |Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets at amortised cost::

Investment in Government Securities 13,74,29,844 14,76,43,863 14,76,43,863 -
Security Deposit 14,96,390 14,96,390 - 14,96,390
Trade receivables 9,07,27,398 9,07,27,398 - -
{Unbilled Revenue 5,41,68,558 5,41,68,558 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,74,79,947 1,74,79,947 - -
Interest Accrued on Investment 17,99,425 17,99,425 - -
Total 30,31,01,562 31,33,15,581 14,76,43,863 | 14,96,390
Financial assets at Fair Value through

P&L

Investment in Mutual Fund 9,06,84,380 9,06,84,380 9,06,84,380 -
Total 9,06,84,380 9,06,84,380 9,06,84,380 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised

cost:
|Borrowings 67,09,39,124 67,09,39,124 - -
Current maturities of long-term debt - - - -
Creditors for capital supplies/services 87,07,452 87,07,452

Revenue adjustments towards true-up 17,04,147 17,04,147 - -
Trade Payable 50,23,803 50,23.803 - -

Total 68,63,74,526 | 68,63,74,526 - =
As at 31st March, 2020 Carrying Amount Fair Value |Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets at amortised cost::

Investment in Government Securities 12,32,67,268 13,36,28,932 13,36,28,932 -
Security Deposit 13,92,410 13,92,410 - 13,92,410
Trade receivables 12,02,81,619 12,02,81,619 - -
Unbilled Revenue 48,63,328 48,63,328 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 9,46,726 9,46,726 - -
Interest Accrue on Investment 15,03.045 15,03,045 - -
Total 25,22,54,396 26.26,16,060 13,36,28,932 | 13,92,410
Financial assets at Fair Value through

P&L

Investment in Mutual Fund 15,79.50,926 15,79,50,926 15,79.50,926 -
Total 15,79,50,926 15,79,50,926 15,79,50,926 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised|

cost:

Borrowings 93,43,73,044 93,43,73,044 - -
Current maturities of long-term debt 20,70,84,667 20,70,84,667 - -
Interes_t accrued but not due on 85.44,813 85.44,813 i )
borrowings

Revenue adjustments towards true-up 1,81,93,769 1,81,93,769 - B
Trade Payable 86,66,693 86.66,693 - -

1,17,68,62,986

1,17,68,62,986




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 Financial Risk Management Objectives & Policies

Capital management
The Company manages its capital with the primary objective of maximising the return to stakeholders. The Company operates in

a regulated environment, the capital gearing/structuring in relation to the Company's electricity transmission business has been
approved under MERC regulations. Following commencement of the Company's transmission business and generation of
revenues determined as per approved MERC tariff regulations (the said revenues inclusive of debt servicing), the net debt of the
Company has been reducing following repayment of debt.

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Debt (i) 67,09,39,124 1,14,14,57,711
Cash and cash equivalents 1,74,79,947 946,726
Net debt 65,34,59,177 1,14,05,10,985
Total equity 2,40,67,02,618 2,15,49,60,803
Net debt to equity ratio 0.27 0.53

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings (excluding derivative and contingent consideration).

Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports
which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of
financial instrument as a result of change in interest rates, exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk
sensitive instruments. As regards the future earnings from the Company’s business of providing transmission services, the same
is as determined pursuant to the MERC tariff regulations based on the cost of providing the transmission services plus a fixed post
tax return on equity of 15.5% upon the Company maintaining the contracted availability of transmission line services. The
Company is not exposed to significant market risks as regards the risk of loss of future earnings from its business of transmission
services. As regards market risks attributable to all market risks sensitive financial instruments, the same is closely monitored by
the Risk Management Committee to determine appropriate mitigation plan as appropriate from time to time.




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Company revenue is regulated by MERC Regulation where in company's revenue includes Interest on loan. The rate of interest

considered by regulation is the weighted average rate of interest computed on the basis of the actual loan portfolio
The following table provides a break-up of the Company's fixed and floating rate loan portfolio:

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

Fixed rate borrowings
Floating rate borrowings

67,09,39.124

1.14,14.57.711

Total borrowings

67,09,39,124

1,14,14,57,711

Credit risk management:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
Credit risk is minimal due to the fact that the customer base largely consists of Distribution companies, the amount recoverable
from whom are as determined as per MERC order.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with senior management, which has established an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The table below provides detail regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date

Particul <1 1-5 >5

articulars year years years Total Amount in
|Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings - 53,93,32,978 2,54,75,862 56,48,08,840
Short term borrowings 10,61,30,284 - B 10,61,30,284
Credlltors . for capital 87,07.452 ) i 87.07,452
suppliers/services
lrjl[;evenue adjustments towards true- 17.04,147 i ) 17,084,147
Trade Payable 50,23,803 - - 50,23,803
Total Financial Liabilities 12,15,65,686 53,93,32,978 2,54,75,862 68,63,74,526




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 Trade Receivables

The average credit period of Transmission Income is 30 days. Surcharge receivable towards delayed receipt of
payment for Transmission services rendered by the company is accounted in the period during which such

surcharge is approved by MERC.

Trade receivables include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Company has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Company does not
generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right of

offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.

Age of receivables:

{Amount in )
Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2021 2020

Within the credit period 4,52,66,902 5,48,40,617

1-30 days past due 4,52,66,985 29,186
31-60 days past due 1,90,595 -
61-90 days past due 972 -
91-180 days past due 1,944 -
181-365 days past due - -
|More than one year - -

|Total 9,07,27,398 5,48,69,803

28 Earnings per share:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of

Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

Earning per share-Basic
Earning per share-Diluted

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (%)
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic & diluted EPS

25,15,90,568
13,75,00,000
1.83
1.83

28,13,73,373
13,75,00,000
2.05
2.05

23 Remuneration to Auditors (inclusive of tax):

(Amount in T)

Particulars 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2020
As Auditor 6,19,500 6,19,500
For Taxation Matters 1,18,000 1,18.000
For Certification Service 1,77,000 1,77,000
For Out of pocket expenses 34,497 12,671
Total 9,48,997 9,27,171




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30A Deferred tax balances:

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the balance sheat. Amount in ¥
Particulars As at 321:2t1March. As at 31st March, 2020
Deferred tax liabilities net of recoverable in future tariff - -
Deferred tax assets net of recoverable in future tariff - -
Total - -

. . Recognised As at 31st March,
Particulars As at 1st April, 2020 in profit or loss 2021
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment (29,35,26,236) 1,10,65,163 (28,24,61,073)
FVTPL financial assets - - -
IMAT Credit Entitlement . 61,69,91,635 4,97,18,358 66,67,09,993
Recoverable in Future Tariff (32,34.65,400) (6,07,83,521) (38,42,48,920)

Total > = .

A " Recognised As at 3tst March,
Particulars As at 1st April, 2019 in profit o loss 2020

|Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment (29,05,42,868) (29,83,367) (29,35,26,236)
FVTPL financial assets 2,02,975 (2,02,975) -
IMAT Credit Entittement 56,13,84,276 5,56,07,359 61,69,91,635
Recoverable in Future Tariff (27,10,44,383) (5,24,21,016) (32,34,65,400)

Total - - -

30B Income tax:

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
—_— e
Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st March,

particulars March, 2021 2020

Profit before tax 30,53,69,093 34,14,57 214

Enacted tax rate 29.120% 29 120%

liIncome tax expense 8,89,23,480 9,94,32,341

Tax effect due to exempt income

Effect of non deductible expenses 19,51,040 19,55,408

Tax effect due to tax holiday (8,67,75,059) (9,68,34,342)

Recoverable in Future Tariff 4,96,79,063 5,55,30,435
(3.51,44,956) (3,93,48,500)

|Income tax expenses recognised in profit & loss account 5,37.78.624 6,00,83,841

The Company have, basis the impact assessment of the option given under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to pay income tax at 22% plus
applicable surcharge and cess subject to certain conditions, decided to continue with the existing tax structure until utilization of their respective accumulated
minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit.

31 Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:

Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st March,
Particulars March, 2021 2020
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 67,00,000 67,14,999
Amount spent during the year on :
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - 16,70,669
(ii) On purchase other than (i} above 67,00,000 50,44,330
Total 67,00,000 67.14,999




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Gratuity :

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

|Particulars

(Amount in 3)

Interest cost

Interest cost

Defined benefit obligation at 1 April 2019

Current service cost

Benefits paid/Transferred Net

Actuarial (Gains)/Loss

Defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2020

Current service cost

Benefits paid/Transferred Net

Actuarial (Gains)/Loss

Defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2021

11,85,061
80,011
92,316

7,76,527
(1,94,630)
19,39,285
1,33,617
99,688
(8,40,343)
(2,01,039)

11,31,208

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2021:

(Amount in )

Particulars

Defined Benefit

Fair Value of Plan

Benefit Liability

Obligation assets
Opening Balance as on 01st April -
Gratuity cost 2020 19,39,285 1,88,281 17,51,004
charged to profit |Service cost 99,688 99,688
or loss Net interest expense 1,33,617 12,973 1,20,644
Sub-total included in profit or loss 2,33,305 12,973 2,20,332
Benefits paid/Transferred (8.40,343) (8,40,343)
Remeasurement |Return on plan assets (excluding
(gains)/losses in |amounts included in net interest
other expense) - (17,772) 17,772
comprehensive |actyarial changes arising  from
income changes in financial assumptions (1,475) - (1,475)
Experience adjustments (1,99,564) (1,99,564)
Sub-total included in OCI (2,01,039) (17,772) (1,83,267)
Contributions by employer -
Closing Balance as on 31st March
2021 11,31,208 1,83,482 9,47,726

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2020:

IParticulars

Defined Benefit

Fair Value of Plan

Benefit Liability

2020

Obligation assets
Opening Balance as on 1st April
Gratuity cost 2019 11,85,061 1,77,361 10,07,700
charged to profit |Service cost 92,316 - 92,316
or loss Net interest expense 80,011 13,816 66,195
Sub-total included in profit or loss 1,72,327 13,816 1,568,511
Benefits paid 7,76,527 7,76,527
Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest = (2,896) 2,896
Remeasurement |expense)
gains/(losses) in
other ) Actuarial changes arising  from| 15,479 g 15,479
Fomprehenswe changes in demographic assumptions
income ] s
Actuanal‘ changes ansmg from| 77.757 } 77.757
changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments (2,87,866) (2,87,866)
Sub-total included in OCI {1,94,630) (2,896) (1,91,734)
Contributions by employer -
Closing Balance as on 31st March 19,39, 285 1,88,281 17,51,004
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
% %
Discount rate 6.90 6.89
Future salary increases: 6.00 6.00
Rate of Employee Turnover 3.00 3.00

indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives

Mortality rate during Employment Mortality (2006-08) | Mortality (2006-08)

Ultimate Ultimate
Life expectation for: Years Years
Post-employment health care benefit plan
Male NA NA
Female NA NA

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

31st March, 2021| 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2021

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (1,35,299) 1,61,293 161,128 (1,37,537)

B. Compensated absences:

The Company has a policy on compensated absences with provisions on accumulation and encashment by the employees
during employment or on separation from the group due to death, retirement or resignation. The expected cost of compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at the balance sheet date using projected
unit credit method.
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33 Related party disclosure:

A) List of Related Parties :
Related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year:
I Holding Company:
1 JSW Energy Limited (Holding Company)
l Other related parties with whom the Group has entered into transactions during the year:
1 Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited
2 JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited
3 JSW Global Business Solutions Limited
4 JSW Foundation
I} Key Managerial Personnel:
1 Mr. Ravindra Dinkarrao Chavan — Chairman
2 Mr. Peddanna Ramayanam - Managing Director (w.e.f. 1st November 2020)
3 Mr Sanjay Krishnarao Taksande - Director
4 Mr. Aditya Agarwal - Director (w.e.f 15th June 2020)
5 Mr. Ashesh Kumar Padhy - Director (w.e f 2nd September, 2020)
6 Mr. Ashok Phalnikar - Director (w.e.f. 29th October, 2020)
7 Ms. Rupa Devi Singh - Independent Director (w.e.f 3rd April, 2020)
8 Mr Krishnaraj Nair - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 3rd February 2020)
9 Mr Narendra Rahalkar- Company Secretary
10 Mr. Sharad Mahendra - Director (Upto 9th June 2020)
11 Mr. Jyoti Kumar Agarwal — Director (Upto 15th September 2020)
12 Mr Yatish Kumar Chhabra -Managing Director (Upto 31st October 2020)
13 Mr Jaykishan Birla - Chief Financial Officer (Upto 14th December 2019)
Amount in
B) Transaction during the year Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
Services Paid/(Received)
|Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited 52,54,164 47,90,108
JSW Global Business Solutions Limited 6.37,497 9,33,666
JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited (1.61.719) =
Sale of materiais
JSW Energy Limited 12,59.580 -
Rent Paid/(received)
JSW Energy Limited 1,180 1,000
Reimbursement received from / (paid to)
JSW Energy Limited (15,10,843) 45,797
Donations/CSR Expenses
JSW Foundation 67.00,000 22,51,261
Amount in ¥
C) Closing Balances 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2020
1 Trade (Payables) / Receivables
IMaharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (13.26,416) (12,16,818)
JSW Energy Limited 34,00,613 22,17,009
JSW Global Business Solution Limited 7,168 (2,81,311)
2 IDeposit With
1JSW Eneray Limited 50.00,000 50,00.000
Note:

i) No amounts in respect of related parties have been written off / written back during the year, nor has any provision been made for doubtful
debts / receivables during the year, except as discussed above

ii) Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors,

iii) Related party transactions have been disclosed on basis of value of transactions in terms of the respective contracts.
iv) Terms and conditions of sales and purchases: the sales and purchases transactions among the related parties are in the ordinary course of
business based on normat commercial terms, conditions, market rates and memorandum of understanding signed with the related parties. For
the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company has not recorded any loss allowances for transactions between the related parties.
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Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act:

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), based on the available information with the Company are as under:

Amount in ¥

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Principal amount outstanding 2,79,767

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -

Interest due on (2) above and the unpaid interest -

Interest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act. -

Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year -

Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (4) above - =

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid = =

Amount of further interest remaining due and payabie in succeeding
years

Operating segment:

The managing director of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.
The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however only for one
segment viz. "Transmission Services". Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating
Segments".

Contingency Reserve:

The Company has set aside an amount of % 13,797,077 (Previous year ¥ 13,797,070) as ‘Contingency Reserve' to be used for the purpose of future losses,
which may arise from uninsured risks, or as determined by the board as per Clause 50.7 of MERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2005.

Disclosure of COVID-19 on operations:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial
statements. The Company’s transmission capacities are tied up under long term transmission agreements, which insulates revenue of the Company under
such contracts. Based on the present assessment, the management does not expect any medium to long-term impact on the business of the Company.
The Company has evaluated the possible effects on the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventory, loans and receivables basis the
internal and external sources of information and concluded, exercising reasonable estimates and judgements, that the carrying amounts of these assets
are recoverable. Having regard to the above, and the Company’s liquidity position, there is no uncertainty in meeting financial obligations in the
foreseeable future.

Contingent liabilities & Commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities & commitments to be disclosed by the Company.

The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain financial assets & financial liabilities. The Management does not expect any
material difference affecting the current year's financial statements due to the same.

Previous year’s figure has been re-grouped/ re-arranged, wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L
Ra ra Chavan Peddanna Ramayanam

Director Managing Director
DIN: 06537224 DIN: 08923138

~

\orr

Narendra Rahalkar
Company Secretary

Krishnaraj Nair
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of
JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO
LIMITED (“the Company"), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March
2022, and its profits, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statemahts.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
Other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not
include the financial statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. FAA N

Kolkata Mumbai New Delhi Chennai Hyderabad Jaipur
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Based on the work we have performed, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
_that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
"guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the puesrdg of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressmg our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope pf our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards., o

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we

give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as reqwred by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examm of those books and records.
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(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified
as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure “B".

(9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

During the year, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors, except
for sitting fees.

(h) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with
the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements. — Refer Note 38 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalif of
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from
any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
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whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representation under sub clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) of
The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contains any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the financial year 2021-22.
Accordingly, reporting under Rule 11 (f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
istration No. — 301051E

.M\ Hariharan

Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: May 02, 2022 Membership No. 38323
UDIN: 22038323AIGVQI7777
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Annexure “A” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report to the members of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED of even
date:

On the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we state that:

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b) The Company has carried out physical verification of all its property, plant and
equipment during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification

¢) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not carried out revaluation of its property, plant and equipment and
accordingly, reporting requirements of paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. The procedures of physical verification of the inventories
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of
the Company and nature of it's business. As per the information and explanations
given to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to book
records.

b) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given
to us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with banks in respect
of working capital are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iy In our opinion' and according to the information and’ explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting requirements of clause 3(iii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not issued guarantees, given loans or issued any security to which the
provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 are applicable. In respect of investments, the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with.
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v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

X)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits
within the meaning of directives issued by RBI (Reserve Bank of India) and Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder have been
accepted by the Company. Accordingly, reporting requirements of paragraph 3(v) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, have
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information
and explanations given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31%
March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations give to us and the records of the
Company, there are no dues of income tax or goods and services tax or sales tax or
wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the records maintained by the Company and information and explanations
given to us, there were no transactions relating previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

a. The Company has not defauited in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the repayment of interest thereon to the lenders. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

c. The Company has not taken any temloan during the year and accordingly, reporting
requirements of paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have not
been used for long term purposes.

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries and accordingly, reporting requirements
of paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

f. The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and accordingly, reporting requirements of
paragraph 3(x) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xi) a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in India and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such
case by the management.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

¢) No whistle blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

xiiiy According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. Refer Note 33 to the financial statements.

xiv) a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate to the size
of the Company and nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the report of the internal auditors for the year under audit, issued
to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non- cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them as per the provisions of Section 192 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting requirements under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) We have been informed by the management that as per the definition of Group under
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core
Investment Company (CIC) which is registered and three CICs which are not required to
be registered with the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group.

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviil) There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, reporting requirements under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing as
at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring
a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with
the second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said act. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Agcountants
Firm registrafion No. — 301051E

A. M. Hariharan

Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: May 02, 2022 Membership No. 38323
UDIN: 22038323AIGVQI7777
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Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report to the members of JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED of even
date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JAIGAD
POWERTRANSCO LIMITED (“the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal' financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the entity's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements
and (4) also provide us reasonable assurance by the internal auditors through their internal
audit reports given to the Company from time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, broadly in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential Component of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. — 301051E

. M. Hariharan

Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: May 02, 2022 Membership No. 38323
UDIN: 22038323AIGVQI7777




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
(2 in lakh)
As at As at
Particulars [Note 37st March, 2022 | | 31st March, 2021
| ASBETS
(1) Non-current assets:
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(i} Tangible assets 5A 23,910.81 26,834.33
(b) Capital work In progress 5B 166.47 94.83
(c) Financial assets
(i} Investments 8 1,616.40 1,374.30
(li) Other financial assets 7 14.00 14.96
(d) Income tax assets (net) 31.60 21.84
(@) Other non-current assets 11 - 0.07
26,627.98 26,340.33
{2) Current assets:
(a) inventories 8 81.31 61.68
(b) Financial assets
() Investments 8 657.38 906.84
(liy Trade receivables 9 1,028.38 907.27
(lii) Unbllled revenue 841.98 541.69
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 10 202.12 174.80
(v) Other financlal assets 7 18.36 17.99
() Other current assets 1" 6.87 19.24
2,636.38 2,628.49
TOTAL ASSETS 28,2684.36 auisau.sz
il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12A 13,750.00 13,750.00
(b) Other equity 128 13,174.67 10,317.03
26,924,567 24,087 .03
Liabllitles
(1) Non-curvent labllities:
(a) Financial liablities
- Borrowings 13 - 5,848.00
(b) Provisions 14 52.74 18,65
§2.74 5,866.74
{2) Current llabllities:
(a) Financlal liabllities
() Borrowings 13 1,192.91 1,081,30
(i) Trade payables 15
« Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise & small
entarprise . 2,80
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprise & small enterprise 58.08 47.44
(liy Other financlal llabilities 10 21.27 104.11
{b) Other current liabilities 17 8.20 8.57
(c) Provisions 14 761 3.08
(d) Current tax llabilities (net) 2.00 B.75
1,287.06 1,236.05
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 28&.35 30,966.82
See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date
For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Syed Nasbﬁéﬂ W
Director Managing Direclor
DIN: 09384397 DIN: 08923138
Place: Mumbai Naveen m;% Krlshnaraj Nair
Dats: May 2, 2022 Company Secretary Chief Financlal Officer




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
(T in lakh)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Note ended ended
31st March,2022 | | 31st March,2021
I  Revenue from operations 18 7,152.11 7171.73
H Otherincome 19 131.72 140.78
Total income (I+II) 7,283.83 7,312.51
It Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 20 145.69 105.74
Finance costs 21 361.75 832.31
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 2,923.72 2,913.40
Other expenses 23 381.80 407.36
Total Expenses (lll) 3,812.96 4,258.81
IV Profit before tax (I+!-1il) 3,470.87 3,053.70
V Tax Expenses: 24
Current tax 606.43 §37.79
Deferred tax (568.07) (496.79)
Deferred tax (recoverable)/ payable in future tariff 568.07 496.79
606.43 537.79 |
VI Profit after tax for the year (IV - V) 2,864.44 2,615.91
Vil Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) (17.45) 1.83
- Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 3.05 (0.32)
Vill Total comprehensive Income for the year (VI - Vil) 2,850.04 2,617.42
IX Earnings per share of € 10 each 28
Basic 2.07 1.83
Diluted 2,07 1.83
See Accompanying Notes 10 The Financial Statsments
As per our attached report of even date
For Lodha & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
o
a0
Syed Nﬂéuadrl P na Ramayanam
Director Managing Director
Membership No.38323 DIN: 09364397 DIN: 08923138
) Mool /ﬂﬁi
Place: Mumbai Naveen Manghani Krishnaraj Nair
Date: May 2, 2022 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

A: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (In € Jakh)|
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 13,750
Changes in equity share capital during the year o
Balance as at 31st March 2021 13,750
Changes in equity share capital during the year =
Balance as at 31st March 2022 13,750
B: OTHER EQUITY
{€ In fakh)
Remeasurements
Equity settled
Partlculars employee benefits |Retained Earnings c;':;:?:::y be‘:\fetf.i‘tell: :fllthT;‘s / Total Other Equity
reserve (asset)
|Balance as at 1st April, 2020 . 6,505.34 1,294.26 0.01 7,799.61
Proflt for the year 2,515.91 - - 2,515.91
Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT
Regulation 2015 : i3z 19797 < ;
Remeasurements of the deflned beneflt liabllitles / (asset) - . - 1.51 1.51
[Ba,ance as at 31st March, 2021 E 8,883.26 1,432.23 1,52 10,317.03
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 . 8,883.28 1,432.23 1.62 10,317.03
Profit for the year - 2,804.44 - - 2,864.44
Transferred to Contingency Reserve as per MERC MYT
Regulation 2015 o (138.00) 138.00 . .
Share based payments 7.50 7.50
Remeasurements of the deflned benefit llabllities / (asset) - - - (14.40) (14.40)]
Balance as at 31st March 2022 7.50 11,609.72 1,670.23 (12.88) 13,174.67

See Accompanying Noles To The Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Lodha & Co.

Chartered Accountan

SAE

Partner
Mermbership No.38323

Place: Mumbat
Date: May 2, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Syed NAadrl

Director
DIN: 09364397

Company Secretary

Péddana Ramayanam

Chief Financlal Officer

9}@

Managing Director
DIN: (18923138

Krishnara] Nalr




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 o
nia
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax 3,470.87 3,053.69
Adjustment for .
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,923.72 2,913.40
Interest income & gain on sale of current investments (131.72)| (139.56)]
Share-based payments 7.50 -
Provision no longer required written back - (1.22)
Loss on write off of property, plant and equipment - 54.59
Net loss arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL 0.50 0.23
Provision for doubtful debts 0.08 0.82
Finance costs 361.76 832.31
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,632.68 6,714.26
Adjustment for
Decrease / (Increase) Trade & other receivables (208.13)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables & other liabilities 8.58
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (19.65)
Direct Taxes paid {619.79)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,793.69
|B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant and equipment, CWIP (net of capital expenditure) (126.37) {168.19)
Interest income & gain on sale of current investments 130.85 | 136.37 |
Investment in mutuai funds and government securities (142.10) {141.83)
Proceeds from sale of current investment 249.48 672.67
NET CASH FLLOW FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 111.86 511.22
|C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings ( Repayments) (net) (5.5616.48) (4,705.19)
Finance costs paid (361.75)' (917.7§4
NET CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (6,878.23)] (5,622.95)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 27.32 165.33
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 174.80 9.47
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - AT END OF THE YEAR 202.12 174.80
See Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements

Notes :
1) The figures for the previous periods have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable
ith the figures for the current periods.

Ag per our attached report of even date
For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Registration Mo:301051E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\wag
b e
8yed Nasir Quadri Peddana Ramayanam

Director Managing Dir&clorl
DIN: 09364397 DIN: 08923138

Place: Mumbai Naveen Ma Krishnaraj Nair
Date: May 2, 2022 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Partner
Membership No.:38323
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Jaigad PowerTransco Limited (the Company), which is the joint venture of JSW Energy Limited and Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Company Limited with 74% and 26% share holding respectively has been set up to construct, operate and maintain 55 Kilo
meters of one Jaigad—New Koyna 400 KV double circuit (Quad) transmission line and 110 kilo meters of one Jaigad-karad 400 KV double
circuit (Quad) transmission line.

The construction of 55 Kilo meters Jaigad-New —New Koyna &110 kilo meters of Jaigad-karad 400 KV double circuit (Quad) transmission line
has been completed and has been declared for commercial operations with effect from 7th July, 2010 & 2nd December 2011 respectively.

Applicability of new Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS'), amendments and interpretations:

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Apr
2021. The Company has not early adopted any other standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced
with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR)

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

+ a practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to BE treated as
changes to a floating Interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of Interest

« Permit changes required by IBOR reform to BE made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued

« Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a
hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company intends to use the practical expedients in
future periods if they become applicable.

Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards
pronounced by the standard-setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has
relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard
or where there is choice of accounting policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of
the footnote to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e.
definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18,
2021, applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for
accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 to update the condition for lessees to
apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022 from June 30, 2021. The amendment applies to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. In case a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before
the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2020.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards* issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. Therefore,
the acquirer does not recognise those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in its
post-combination financial statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28
The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the-higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use” are replaced with "higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disp / 3

in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

New and revised Ind ASs in issue but not yet effective:
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following new and revised Ind ASs that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Notification dated 18th June, 2021 has issued new Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Amendment Rules, 2021. These rules are applicable with immediate effect from the date of the said notification. Major amendments notified
in the notification are provided below:

(a) Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an
item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022.

(b) Ind AS 37 | Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling' a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example
would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted.

(c) Ind AS 103 | Business combinations — The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities and contingent liabilities.

(d) Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the '10%’ test in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

The Company is evaluating the impact of these amendments.

Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”) have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. The Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its
meeting held on May 2, 2022.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Financial Statements have been followed. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian
Rupees ('INR") which is functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest crore, except otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates & Judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the
financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based
on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be
reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the Company for preparation of financial statements is described in note 4.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use.

Transmission system assets are considered “ready for their intended use”, for the purpose of capitalization, after test charging/ successful
commissioning of the system/ assets and on completion of stabilization period wherever technically required.

The cost of an addition or extension to an existing asset which is of a capital nature and which becomes an integral part of the existing asset
is usually added to its gross book value. Any addition or extension, which has a separate identity and is capable of being used after the
existing asset is disposed of, is accounted for separately.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

In case of commissioned assets, work against deposits/works contracts where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected;
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in the year of final settlements.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its
useful life, the present value of the estimate cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition
or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

Cost of regular comprehensive maintenance work (such as major overhaul) are capitalized as a separate component if they satisfy the
recognition criteria.

Other Intangible assets :-

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as Intangible assets based on materiality, accounting prudence and
significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation & amortisation:
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided, pro-rata for the period of use, by the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the provisions of Part B
of Schedule [l of the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease.
Software is depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.
When the historical cost of an asset has undergone a change due to price adjustment, exchange fluctuation or similar factors the

depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset.
“Useful Life" in relation to a transmission system is 35 Years as defined in Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)

Regulation 2019
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Work-in-progress and Pre-operative Expenses during Construction Period

Capital Work-in-Progress includes expenditure during construction period incurred on projects under implementation treated as pre-operative
expenses pending allocation to the assets. These expenses are apportioned to the respective fixed assets on their completion /
commencement of commercial production.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits which are short term and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Inventories:

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase price, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.
Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition:

Transmission Income is accounted for on accrual basis for the period of operation of the transmission line computed based on the approved
Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR) or where the ARR is not approved, on the basis of the tariff order.

Where neither the ARR nor the tariff order are approved, transmission income is accounted as per Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations 2015(MERC Regulations) where under, transmission income is computed by taking the total
costs, contingency provision and Return on Equity (ROE) @ 15.5% on post-tax basis and after grossing up with the applicable income taxes
for the purpose of revenue.

Any difference between the total annual revenue recognised as aforesaid and the annual revenue as approved by MERC in respect of ARR /
Truing up Petition filed is adjusted / recognised during the accounting period in which approval of the ARR / Truing up Petition, as the case
may be, is received from MERC.
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Interest income:
Surcharge receivable towards delayed receipt of payment for Transmission services rendered by the company is accounted in the period

during which such surcharge is approved by MERC.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currency transactions:

In preparing the financial statements of Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive  use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

Employee benefits:

a. Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

b. Long term employee benefits:
Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation using

projected unit credit method.

¢. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Defined contribution plans:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans:

For defined benefit retirement benefits plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, and spread
over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in
respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. Actuarial valuations being carried
out at the end of each annual reporting period for defined benefit plans.

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of resignation/
superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for the every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

Share-based payment arrangements:

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of
each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust for providing share-based payment to its employees. The Trust is used as a vehicle for
distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The Trust buys shares of the Parent Company from the market,
for giving shares to employees. The Company treats the Trust as its extension and sha by the Trust are treated as treasury shares
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Taxation:

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it
relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of
profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reperting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will
pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

The income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares
would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as
at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Provisions , Contingencies and commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
repomng period, taking into account the rlsks and uncertalntles surroundlng the obllgatlon When a provision is measured usmg the cash

of money is material).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an
outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible
or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

Financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other
than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets; and
« the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and
losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income’. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated tuture cash receipts {including all tees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are
included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at
FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an
individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward-looking.

The Company's trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on

trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for
recognition of impairment loss allowance.

allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.
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The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12—month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The
expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its
initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit
risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured
at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method or at fair value.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a
loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

« it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

+ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise

arise;
- the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and

information about the Companying is provided internally on that basis; or
« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be

designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such change are evident to external parties. A change in the business model
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in the business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Classification Revised Classification Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification
date, Difference between previous amortised
cost and fair value is recognised in statement

Amortised cost FVTPL
of profit and loss.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
) new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
FVPTL Amortised cost based on new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous amortised
cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No

Amortised cost FVTOCI -
change in EIR due to reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCl is adjusted
FVTOCI Amortised cost against fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured
at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
FVTPL FVTOCI new gross carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified to statement of profit and

FVTOCI FVTPL
loss at the reclassification date.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Leases:

The Company as lessor:

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Lease classification is made at the inception date and is reassessed only if there is a lease modification. Changes in estimates (for example,
changes in estimates of the economic life or of the residual value of the underlying asset), or changes in circumstances (for example, default
by the lessee), do not give rise to a new classification of a lease for accounting purposes. For a modification to a finance lease, if the lease
would have been classified as an operating lease had the modification been in effect at the inception date, lease modification is accounted as
a new lease from the effective date of modification and carrying amount of underlying asset is measured as the net investment in the lease
immediately before the effective date of the lease modification.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.
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The Company as lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether : (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset; (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to
all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of
low value assets (i.e. below Rupees five lac). For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liability (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not
accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

For a contract that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Change in accounting estimates

The effect of change in an accounting estimate shall be recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss accounts except where
estimates relates to assets and liabilities or an equity it shall be recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or
equity.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 3 above, the Company is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision
affects current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Service concession arrangements

The management have assessed applicability of Annexure D of Ind AS 115: 'Service Concession Arrangements' with respect to transmission
assets. In assessing the applicability, they have exercised significant judgment in relation to the underlying ownership of the assets, terms of
Licence, ability to determine prices, useful lives of the assets. Based on detailed evaluation, transmission assets do not meet the criterion for
recognition as service concession arrangements.

Reqgulatory deferral accounts

The Company has not adopted Ind as 114 'Regulatory deferral accounts' since in previous GAAP, Guidance Note on Accounting for the Rate
Regulated Activities, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) was not adopted.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are dependent
upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external
factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information

available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset

is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply,
economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subseguent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that
are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are

disclosed in the notes but are not recognised.

Fair value measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. All assets and liabilities for which fair value measured or disclosed
in financial statements are categorized with in the fair value hierarchy described as Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 as below:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

for the purpose of fair value disclosure, the company determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the assets and liabilities and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each

reporting date.

Tax

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect of any period is dependent upon the interpretation of

the relevant tax rules. Whilst an assessment must be made of deferred tax position of each entity within the Company, these matters are
) inherently uncertain until the position of each entity is agreed with the relevant tax authorities.
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NOTE: 5A - Property, plant and equipment

JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Z in lakh)
|Descripti0n of assets# Land-freehold Pla_nt e Furr.nture RAC Computers Off'ce Right of Use Total
equipment fixtures equipment asset
" Gross carrying value ##
IBalance as at 1st April, 2021 69.78 | 44,152.39 10.82 2.09 15.62 31.82 | 44,282.52
ra.dditions = = : “ = = "
|Adjustments / Deductions = : - . . -
. alance as at 31st March 2022 69.78 | 44,152.39 10.82 2.09 15.62 31.82 | 44,282.52
|
“il. Accumulated depreciation

|Balance as at 1st April, 2021 17,437.66 4.23 1.25 1.53 3.52 | 17,448.19
|Depreciati0n and amortisation expense for the year 2,919.92 0.75 0.23 1.07 1.75 2,923.72

lliminated on disposal of assets -
Ialance as at 31st March 2022 20,357.58 4.98 1.47 2.60 5.27 | 20,371.91
) let carrying value (I-1l)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 69.78 | 23,794.81 5.84 0.62 13.02 26.55 | 23,910.61
[_

Gross carrying value ##

LB " jce as at 1st April, 2020 69.78 | 44,108.35 10.94 3.26 4.10 31.82 | 44,228.25

\ouwions - 165.87 - - 11.89 - 177.76
|Adjustments / Deductions (121.83) (0.12) (1.17) (0.37) - (123.49)
"Jalance as at 31st March 2021 69.78 | 44,152.39 10.82 2.09 15.62 31.82 | 44,282.52
|
lIl. Accumulated depreciation

salance as at 1st April, 2020 14,584.31 3.60 1.95 1.38 1.76 | 14,593.00
|Depreciation and amortisation expense for the year 2,910.22 0.75 0.35 0.33 1.76 2,913.41
"Zliminated on disposal of assets (56.87) (0.12) (1.05) (0.18) - (58.22)
\Balance as at 31st March 2021 17,437.66 4,23 1.25 1.53 3.52 | 17,448.19
[Net carrying value (I-l)

jalance as at 31st March 2021 69.78 | 26,714.73 6.59 0.84 14.09 28.30 | 26,834.33

|# Assets pledged as security : Plant and Machinery, Furniture and Fixture, Computer, Office Equipment with a carrying amount as mentioned above have been
Yledged to secure borrowings of the Company (refer note 13).

qu# Gross Block is after netting off accumulated depreciation as on 1st April, 2015. Accumulated depreciation amount as on 1st April, 2015 is as under:

|Description of Assets Land-Freehold EPIa!1t e Furrrnture I Computers o.ff'ce Rightichilise Total
quipment Fixtures Equipment asset
LAccumuialed depreciation till 1st April, 2015 - 10,987.45 2.02 1.66 0.72 - 10,991.85
rﬂI‘OTE: 5B - Capital work in progress
(% in lakh)
As at 31st March, 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
?rojects in progress
(Office-cum-guest house building 60.64 79.36 15.47 = 155.47
60.64 79.36 15.47 - 155.47
| As at 31st March, 2022 To be completed in Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears > 3 years
Dffice-cum-guest house building 165.47 155.47
[ 155.47 - - - 155.47
¢ (% in lakh)
[ As at 31st March, 2021 Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
< 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
(Projects in progress
|Office-cum-guest house bullding 79.36 16.47 - - 94.83
79.36 15.47 - - 94.83
|
! As at 31st March, 2021 To be completed in Total
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 vears
- 94.83 94.83

|Office-cum-guest house building
i

94.83

94.83




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(% in lakh)
As at As at
NOTE: 6 - Investments 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Investments carried at:
A. Designated as fair value through profit and loss
|. Quoted Investments
(a) Investments in Mutual Funds 657.36 - 906.84 <
- SBI Mutual Fund
B. Investments carried at amortised cost
I. Unquoted Investments
(a) Investments in government securities - 1,516.40 . 1,374.30
657.36 1,516.40 906.84 1,374.30
Note
Quoted Investments
Book value 657.36 - 906.84 -
\ [Market value 657.36 - 906.84 -
Unquoted Investments
Book value - 1,516.40 - 1,374.30
(% in lakh)
As at As at
NOTE: 7 - Other financial assets 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Carried at amortised cost
(a) Security deposits with others
- Unsecured, considered good
Deposits - 14.00 - 14.96
b) Interest receivable
Interest accrued on investments 18.36 - 17.99 -
18.36 14.00 17.99 14.96
(Z in lakh)
As at As at
NOTE: 8 - Inventories 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Stores and spares 81.31 - 61.66 -
(valued at cost and certified by the management)
81.31 - 61.66 -
(% in lakh)
As at As at
NOTE: 9 - Trade receivables 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Non Current Current Non Current
a) Considered good - unsecured; 1,028.38 - 907.27 -
1,028.38 - 907.27 -

The average credit period of Transmission Income is 30 days. Surcharge receivable towards delayed receipt of payment for
Transmission services rendered by the company is accounted in the period during which such surcharge is approved by MERC.

Trade receivables include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Company has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Company does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ageing of Trade receivables:

(% in lakh)
A Undisputed trade receivables Disputed trade Receivables
s at 5 - = =
31st March, 2022 Considered Considered Considered Considered
qood doubtful qgood doubtful
Current but not due 505.61 - - -
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 522.77 - - -
6 months - 1 year - - - -
1-2 years - - - -
2-3 years - - - -
More than 3 years - - - -
1,028.38 - - -
(% in lakh)
A Undisputed trade receivables Disputed trade Receivables
s at : - - n
31st March, 2021 Considered Considered Considered Considered
__qood doubtful good doubtful
Current but not due 452.67 - - -
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 454.60 - - -
6 months - 1 year - - - -
1-2 years - - - -
2-3 years - - - -
More than 3 years - - - -
907.27 - - -
(Z in lakh)
As at As at

NOTE: 10 - Cash and cash equivalents

31st March,2022

31st March,2021

Current Non Current Current Non Current
Balance with banks
In current accounts 202.12 - 174.80 -
202.12 - 174.80 -
(% in lakh)
As at As at
NOTE: 11 - Other current and non current assets 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Capital advances - - - 0.07
Prepayments 6.87 - 19.24 -
6.87 - 19.24 0.07




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES ACCOMPANYING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

150,000,000 Equity Shares of "10 each

(Previous year 150,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

1,50,00,00,000

(¥ in lakh)
As at As at
NOTE: 12A 31st March,2022 | | 31st March,2021
Equity share capital
Authorised:

1,50,00,00,000

Details of shareholding

31st March,2022

137,500,000 Equity Shares of "10 each 13,750.00 13,750.00
(Previous year 137,500,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
13,750.00 13,750.00
As at As at

31st March,2021

a) Details of shareholding by Holding, Subsidiary or Associate Company

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

JSW Energy Limited (Holding Company) 1,017.50 1,017.50

b) Details of shareholding more than 5%
JSW Energy Limited (Holding Company) 1,017.50 1,017.50
74% 74%
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited 357.50 357.50
26% 26%

c) Terms & Rights attached to equity shares

Annual General Meeting.

proportion to the shareholding.

d) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital is set out below:

Particulars

As at
31st March,2022

As at
31st March,2021

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Balance as at the beginning of the year 13,75,00,000 13,75,00,000
Issued during the year . -
Balance as at the end of the year 13,75,00,000 13,75,00,000
MOTE: 12B - Other equity (% in lakh)
Particulars Asiat As at

B 31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Retained Earnings 11,609.72 8.883.28
Equity settled employee benefits reserve 7.50 -
Contingency reserve 1.570.23 1,432.23
Remeasurements of the defined benefil liabilities / {assel) (12.88) 1.52
Total 13.174.57 10.317.03

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of *10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pay dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing

(i ) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Z in lakh)
NOTE: 13 As at As at
31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Financial liabilities - Borrowings Current Non Current Current Non Current
Secured Borrowing
Term Loans:
From Banks £ - - 2,767.39
From financial institutions - - - 2,917.49
- - - 5,684.88
Less : Unamortised borrowing cost - - - 36.79
- - - 5,648.09
From Banks:
Working Capital Demand Loan 1,192.91 % 1,061.30 -
1,192.91 - 1,061.30 -
1,192.91 - 1,061.30 5,648.09

a) Working capital loans is secured by way of a pari-passu first ranking charge on all moveable and immoveable assets of the
Companies.

Details of Security for Term Loans:

First ranking charge on

(a) moveable assets

(b) on operating cash flows, commissions, revenue, receivables and interest in all the bank accounts including the trust and retention
accounts and intangible assets.

(c) all rights, title, interest benefits, claims, demands etc., in the Company's project documents, insurance contracts, letter of credit etc.

During the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has fully prepaid the outstanding loan amount.

Périod of Repayment As at As at
pay 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
2-3 Years - 2,570.00
4-5 Years - 2,860.00
> 5 years - 254.88




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(% in lakh)

NOTE: 14 - Provisions

As at
31st March,2022

As at
31st March,2021

Current Non Current Current Non Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 3.09 28.62 0.95 11.30
Provision for gratuity 4.52 24.12 2.13 7.35
7.61 52.74 3.08 18.65
As at As at
NOTE: 15 - Trade Payables 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Total outstanding dues of Micro, small and medium enterprises - - 2.80 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, small and medium enterprises 000 N STEA =
55.06 - 50.24 -

based on the available information with the Company are as under:

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act),

Particulars

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Principal amount outstanding

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid

Interest due on (2) above and the unpaid interest

Interest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act.

Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (4) above
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years

2.80

Ageing of trade payables:

31st March, 2022

Undisputed

Disputed

MSME

Others

MSME

Others

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment

Less than1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Not due

Unbilled

2.93
1.07

27.70
23.36

55.06

31st March, 2021

Undisputed

Disputed

MSME

Others

Others

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment

Less than1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Not due

Unbilled

2.80

30.52
4.37

8.21
4.34

47.44

NOTE: 16 - Other financial liabilities

As at

31st March,2022

As
31st Mar,

at
ch,2021

Current

Non Current

Current

Non Current

Measured at amortised cost
Creditors for capital supplies/services
Revenue adjustments towards true-up

21.27

87.07
17.04

21.27

104.11

NOTE:17 - Other liabiltities

As at

31st March,2022

As
31st Mar

at
ch,2021

Current

Non Current

Current

Non Current

Statutory dues

Others

7.26
0.94

8.32
0.25

8.20

8.57




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(% in lakh)

NOTE: 18 - Revenue from Operations

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

Revenue from transmission operations
Less: Impact due to Truing up provisions

7,071.34 7,006.83
(80.77) (164.90)
7.152.11 7171.73

NOTE: 19 - Other Income

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

1. Interest income

Interest on bank deposits
Delayed payment surcharge
Financial assets

2. Others

Gain on sale of current investments
Provision no longer required written back

= 0.13
0.09 .
111.22 102.49
20.41 36.94

- 1.22
131.72 140.78

TE: 20 - Employee Benefits Expense

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Share-based payments

Staff welfare expenses

127.99 97.26
8.35 6.83
7.50 =
1.85 1.65

145.69 105.74

NOTE: 21 - Finance Costs

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

Interest expenses

i) Interest on rupee term loan
ii) Other interest expense

iiiy Other borrowing costs

246.73 809.89
106.93 10.73

8.09 11.69
361.75 832.31

NOTE: 22 - Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

Depreciation & amortisation

2,923.72

2,913.40

2,923.72

2,913.40

JTE: 23 - Other Expenses

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

b T

Rent 6.39 7.30
Repairs and maintenance 212.30 177.68
Rates & taxes 11.03 13.65
Insurance charges 6.04 6.79
Legal & other professional charges 16.14 18.78
Auditors remuneration 9.86 9.49
Travelling expenses 24.23 26.17
Corporate social responsibility expenses 65.00 67.00
Loss on property, plant and equipment written off - 54.59
Net loss arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL 0.50 0.23
Safety & security expense 10.82 9.45
Shared Service Cost 6.94 6.37
Provision for Doubtful Debts 0.06 0.82
Miscellaneous expenses 12.49 9.04
381.80 407.36
= For the Year ended For the Year ended

NOTE: 24 - Tax Expense @ﬁ% 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Current Tax <, WV 606.43 537.79
Deferred Tax *{MUMBA|-01 ) (568.07) (496.79)
Deferred tax (recoverable)/ payable in future tariff C%:\ /..re 568.07 496.79
1 e 606.43 537.79




Note no. 25 - Financlal Ratlos

JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

For the year

Sr. No. Partlculars For the year ended 31st March, 2022 ended 31st Va(r:/a)nce Reason for varlance over 25%
o
Numerator Denominat Ratlos March, 2021
1 Current Ratlo (In times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 205 213 -4% NA
2 Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Borrowings Net Worth 0.04 028 -84% Entire Borrowings prepaid in current
year
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratlo {In times) Profit before Tax, Finance Charges + Long 15.07 448 236% | Entire Borrowings prepaid in current
Exceptional llems, Term Borrowings year
Depreciation, Finance scheduled Principal
Charges repayments (excluding
prepayments + refinancing)
during the ysear)
4 Return on Equlty Ratlo (%) Nel profit after tax Average Networth 11.23% 11.03% 2% NA
5 Debtors Turnover {no. of days) Average Trade Revenue from operations 80 69 16% NA
Receivables including
unbilled revenue
6 Net Capltal Turnover {In times) Annual turnover Working Capital 540 5256 3% NA
7 Net Proflt Margin {%) Net profit for the year Total Income 39.33% 34.41% 14% NA
8 Return on Capltal Employed (%) Profit after tax plus Interest | Average capital employed 1057% 10.79% -2% NA
on long {erm loans and
debentures
9 Return on Investment (%) Profil generaled on sale of | Cost of investment 3.21% 3.66% -12% NA

invesiment
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JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Instruments:

The Fair Values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instruments could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access

at the measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

( in lakh)
As at 31st March, 2022 Carrying Amount Fair Value |Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets at amortised cost::

Investment in Government Securities 1,516.40 1,673.87 1,673.87 -
Security Deposit 14.00 14.00 . 14.00
Trade receivables 1,028.38 1,028.38 - -
Unbilled Revenue 641.98 641.98 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 202.12 202.12 - -
Interest Accrued on Investment 18.36 18.36 - -
Total 3,421.24 3,478.71 1,573.87 14.00
Financial assets at Fair Value through

P&L

Investment in Mutual Fund 657.36 657.36 657.36 -
Total 657.36 657.36 657.36 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised

cost:

Borrowings 1,192.91 1,192.91 - -
Creditors for capital supplies/services 21.27 21.27

Trade Payable 55.06 55.06 - -
Total 1,269.24 1,269.24 - .
As at 31st March, 2021 Carrying Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

_|Financial assets at amortised cost::

Investment in Government Securities 1,374.30 1,476.44 1,476.44 -
Security Deposit 14.96 14.96 - 14.96
Trade receivables 907.27 907.27 - -
Unbilled Revenue 541.69 541.69 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 174.80 174.80 - -
Interest Accrued on Investment 17.99 17.99 - -
Total 3,031.01 3,133.15 1,476.44 14.96
Financial assets at Fair Value through

P&L

Investment in Mutual Fund 906.84 906.84 906.84 -
Total 906.84 906.84 906.84 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised

cost:

Borrowings 6,709.39 6,709.39 - -
Creditors for capital supplies/services 87.07 87.07 - -
Revenue adjustments towards true-up 17.04 17.04 - -
Trade Payable 50.24 50.24 - -
Total 6,863.74 - -




JAIGAD POWERTRANSCO LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 Financial Risk Management Objectives & Policies

Capital management

The Company manages its capital with the primary objective of maximising the return to stakeholders. The Company operates in a
regulated environment, the capital gearing/structuring in relation to the Company's electricity transmission business has been approved
under MERC regulations. Following commencement of the Company's transmission business and generation of revenues determined as
per approved MERC tariff regulations (the said revenues inclusive of debt servicing), the net debt of the Company has been reducing

following repayment of debt.
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows:

(2 in lakh)
. As at As at
Farticulars 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
Debt (i) 1,192.91 6,709.39
Cash and cash equivalents 202.12 174.80
Net debt 990.79 6,534.59
Total equity 26,924.57 24,067.03
Net debt to equity ratio (in times) 0.04 0.27

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings (excluding derivative and contingent consideration).

Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial
markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial
instrument as a result of change in interest rates, exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.
As regards the future earnings from the Company's business of providing transmission services, the same is as determined pursuant to
the MERC tariff regulations based on the cost of providing the transmission services plus a fixed post tax return on equity of 15.5% upon
the Company maintaining the contracted availability of transmission line services. The Company is not exposed to significant market risks
as regards the risk of loss of future earnings from its business of transmission services. As regards market risks attributable to all market
risks sensitive financial instruments, the same is closely monitored by the Risk Management Committee to determine appropriate
mitigation plan as appropriate from time to time.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

Company revenue is regulated by MERC Regulation where in company's revenue includes Interest on loan. The rate of interest
considered by regulation is the weighted average rate of interest computed on the basis of the actual loan portfolio.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company's fixed and floaling rate loan portfolio:

2 lakh

As at
31st March,2021

As at

LTS 31st March,2022

Fixed rate borrowings
Floating rate borrowings
Total borrowings

6,709.39
6,709.39

1,192.91
1,192.91
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Credit risk management:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.

Credit risk is minimal due to the fact that the customer base largely consists of Distribution companies, the amount recoverable from whom
are as determined as per MERC order.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with senior management, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides detail regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date

T lakh
Particulars <1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total Amount
Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings 1,192.91 - 1,192.91
Credl.tors for gapltal 21.27 ) 21.27
suppliers/services
Trade Payable 55.06 - 55.06
Total Financial Liabilities 1,269.24 - 1,269.24

Earnings per share:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (% lakh) 2,864.44 2,515.91
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic & diluted EPS (Nos.) 13,75,00,000 13,75,00,000
Earning per share-Basic 2.07 1.83
Earning per share-Diluted 2.07 1.83
Remuneration to Auditors (inclusive of tax):

T lakh

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
As Auditor 6.49 6.20
For Taxation Matters 1.48 1.18
For Certification Service 1.77 1.77
For Out of pocket expenses 0.12 0.34
Total 9.86 9.49
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30A Deferred tax balances:

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presenled in the balance sheet:

(% in lakh)

[Particulars

As at 31st March,
2022

As at 31st March, 2021

Deferred tax liabilities net of recoverable in future tariff
Deferred tax assets net of recoverable in future tariff

Total % -

. . Recognised As at 31st March,
Particulars As at 1st April, 2021 in profit or loss 2022
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment (2,824.61) 0.00 (2,824.61)
FVTPL financial assets - - -
MAT Credit Entitlement 6,667.10 568.07 7,235.17
Recoverable in Future Tariff (3,842.49) (568.07) (4,410.56)
Total - - -

. . Recognised As at 31st March,
Particulars As at 1st April, 2020 in profit or loss 2021
|Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment (2,935.27) 110.66 (2,824.61)
FVTPL financial assets - - -
MAT Credit Entitlement 6,169.92 497.18 6,667.10
Recoverable in Future Tariff (3.234.65) (607.84) (3,842.49)
Total - - -

30B Income tax:
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
(% in lakh)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March,2022

For the Year ended
31st March,2021

|lincome tax expenses recognised in profit & loss account

Profit before tax 3,470.87 3,053.70
Enacted lax rate 29.120% 29.120%
Income tax expense 1,010.72 889.24
Effect of non deductible expenses 18.93 19.51
Tax effect due to tax holiday (991.29) (867.75)
Recoverable in Future Tariff 568.07 496.79
(404.29) (351.45)
606.43 537.79

The Company have, basis the impact assessment of the option given under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to pay income tax at 22% plus
applicable surcharge and cess subject to certain conditions, decided to continue with the existing tax structure until utilization of their respective

accumulated minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit.
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Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:

(% in lakh)

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

particulars 31st March,2022 31st March,2021
1] Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the companies act 2013 65.00 67.00
2] Amount of expenditure incurred :
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - -
(i) On purchase other than (i) above 65.00 67.00
3] Shortfall at the end of the year - -
4] Total of previous years shortfall B -
NA NA

5] Reason for shortfall

6] Nature of CSR activities

7] Amount unspent, if any;

8] Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard : paid
to JSW Foundation

9] Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be
shown separately

COVID 19 Support & rehabilitation program,
Educational infrastructure & systems
strengthening, Enhance Skills & rural livelihoods
through nurturing of supportive
ecosytems & innovations, General community
infrastructure support & welfare initiatives, Public
health infrastructure, capacity building & support
programs, Project Management Cost.

65.00

NA

67.00

NA
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32 Employee benefit plans:

Defined contribution plans:

A. Provident fund:

The Company’s contribution to provident fund recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of % 4.80 lakh (for the year ended
31st March 2021: ¥ 3.49 lakh) (included in note no. 20)

B. National pension scheme :
The Company's contribution to National Pension Scheme (NPS) recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss of Z 1.85 lakh (Year
ended 31st March, 2021 : Z 1.14 lakh) (included in note 20)

Defined benefit plans:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The amount of gratuity shall be
payable to an employee on the termination of his employment after he has rendered continuous service for not less than five
years, or on their superannuation or resignation. However, in case of death of an employee, the minimum period of five years
shall not be required. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per
month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of service completed. The gratuity plan is a
funded plan administered by a separate fund that is legally separated from the entity and the group makes contributions to the
insurer (LIC). The group does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over period of
time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

)Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment upto a maximum accumulation of 120 days is payable to all eligible
employees on separation of the Group due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation, at the rate of daily salary.

The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bond yields; if the return on plan
asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in
equity securities and debt instruments.

Investment risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an

(U SR s increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
Longevity risk mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

Salary risk participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
March 31, 2022 by M/S K. A. Pandit Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related
current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

A. Gratuity :
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligalion are, as follows:
Particulars (Z in lakh)
Defined benefit obligation at 1 April 2020 19.39
Interest cost 1.34
Current service cost 1.00
Benefits paid/Transferred Net (8.40)
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss (2.01)
Defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2021 11.32
Interest cost 0.78
Current service cost 1.05
Benefits paid/Transferred Net -
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 6.46
Defined benefit obligation at 31st March, 2022 19.61
mq\
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2022:

(% in lakh)

Particulars

Defined Benefit

Fair Value of Plan

Benefit Liability

Obligation assets
Opening Balance as on 01st April
Gratuity cost 2021 11.32 1.83 9.49
charged to profit |Service cost 1.05 1.05
or loss Net interest expense 0.78 0.13 0.65
Sub-total included in profit or loss 1.83 0.13 1.70
Benefits paid/Transferred “ -
Transfer in / Out 10.93 10.93
Return on plan assets (excluding|
amounts included in net interest
Remeasurement |expense) - (0.05) 0.05
(gains)/losses in |Actuarial  changes  arising  from
other changes in demographic assumptions 0.17 - 0.17
comprehensive |Actyarial changes  arising  from
income changes in financial assumptions 4.13 - 4.13
Experience adjustments 216 2.16
Sub-total included in OCI 6.46 (0.05) 6.51
Contributions by employer -
Closing Balance as on 31st March
2022 30.54 1.91 28.63

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2021:

Particulars

Defined Benefit

Fair Value of Plan

Benefit Liability

_ Obligation assets
Opening Balance as on 01st April
Gratuity cost 2020 JEkels 1489 7]
charged to profit |Service cost 1.00 1.00
or loss Net interest expense 1.34 0.13 1.21
Sub-total included in profit or loss 2.34 0.13 2.21
Benefits paid (8.40) (8.40)
Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest . (0.18) 0.18
Remeasurement EXpense)
gains/(losses) in
other Actuarial changes arising from - B -
comprehensive [changesin demographic assumptions
income Actuarial changes arising from (0.01) } (0.01)
changes in financial assumptions '
Experience adjustments (2.00) - (2.00)
Sub-total included in OCI (2.01) (0.18) (1.83)
Contributions by employer .
Closing Balance as on 31st March 11.32 1.83 9.49

2021

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Discount rate:
India gratuity plan

Future salary increases:

India gratuity plan

%

%

7.23

6.90

6.00
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2022

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (2.57) 2.97 2.92 (2.57)

B. Compensated absences:

The Company has a policy on compensated absences with provisions on accumulation and encashment by the employees
during employment or on separation from the group due to death, retirement or resignation. The expected cost of compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at the balance sheet date using projected
unit credit method.

C] Employee share based payment plan:
JSWEL Employees Stock Ownership Plan — 2021 (ESOP 2021)

The Company has offered equity options under ESOP 2021 to the permanent employees, including whole-time director, of the
Company and of its subsidiaries who has been working in India or outside India, in the grades of (i) L16 and above, and (ii)
select employees in the grade L-11 to L-15 based on last 3 (three) years performance; and in each case, as may be determined
based on the eligibility criteria, or any other employee as may be determined by the compensation committee from time to time,
except any employee who is a promoter or belongs to the promoter Company or a director who either by himself or through his
relatives or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the
Company and Independent directors, Nominee Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

The grant is determined after having regard to various factors and criteria specified in ESOP 2021. The exercise price is 10 or
any other price as may be determined by the Compensation Committee. The option shall not be transferable and can be
exercised only by the employees of the Company.

Vesting of the options granted under the ESOP 2021 shall be at least one year from the date of Grant. 25% of the granted
options would vest on the date following 1 year from the date of respective grant, 25% of the granted options would vest on the
date following 2 years from the date of respective grant and the remaining 50% on the date following 3 years from the date of
respective grant.

JSWEL Employees Stock Ownership Plan — Samruddhi 2021 (ESOP Samruddhi 2021)

) The Company has offered equity options under ESOP Samruddhi 2021 to the permanent employees, including whole-time
director, of the Company and of its subsidiaries who has been working in India or outside India, in the grades of L-01 to L-15
(excluding employees covered under ESOP- 21) , except any employee who is a promoter or belongs to the promoter Company
or a director who either by himself or through his relatives or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly, holds more than
10% of the outstanding equity shares of the Company and Independent directors, Nominee Directors and Non-Executive
Directors.

The grant is determined after having regard to various factors and criteria specified in ESOP Samruddhi 2021. The exercise
price is 210 or any other price as may be determined by the Compensation Committee. The option shall not be transferable and
can be exercised only by the employees of the Company.

Vesting of the options granted under the ESOP Samruddhi 2021 shall be at least two year from the date of Grant. 25% of the
granted options would vest on the date following 2 years from the date of respective grant, 26% of the granted options would
vest on the date following 3 years from the date of respective grant and the remaining 50% on the date following 4 years from
the date of respective grant.
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The method of settlement for above grants and shares options outstanding are as below:

Particulars ESOP 2021 ESOP 2021
Samruddhi
Grant Date 7th Aug, 2021 7th Aug, 2021
Vesting period 1/2/3 years 2/3/4 years
Method of settlement Equity Equity
Exercise price (%) 10.00 10.00
Fair value (%) 229.88 228.50
Dividend yield (%) 20.00% 20.00%
Expected volatility (%) 42.53% 1 42.22% | 42.22% [ 40.85% /
40.85% 42.45% '
Risk—free interest rate (%) 5.02% /5.44% / 5.44% /15.78% /
5.78% 6.06%
Expected life of share options 3/4/5 years 4/5/6 years
Weighted average exercise price (%) 10.00 10.00
Pricing formula:
Book close date 6th Aug, 2021 6th Aug, 2021
Exercise price (%) 10.00 10.00
Closing market Price (%) 246.17 246.17
Share options outstanding:
As on 1st April, 2020 z =
Exercised - -
Lapsed - -
As on 31st March 2021 - -
Granted 3,000 10,250
Exercised - -
Lapsed - -
As on 31st March 2022 3,000 10,250

Expected option Life

The expected option life is assumed to be
mid-way between the option vesting and
expiry. Since the vesting period and
contractual term of each tranche is different,
the expected life for each tranche will be
different. The Expected option life is
calculated as (Year to Vesting + Contractual
Option term) /2.

Expected volatility

Volatility was calculated using standard
deviation of daily change in stock price. The
historical period considered for volatility
match the expected life of the option.

How expected volatility was determined, including an explanation of the extent to
which expected volatility was based on historical volatility; and

Whether and how any other features of the option grant were incorporated into the
measurement of fair value, such as a market condition.

The following factors have been considered:
(a) Share price (b) Exercise prices (c)
Historical volatility (d) Expected option life (e)
Dividend Yield

Model used

Black-Scholes Method

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar
to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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A) List of Related Parties :
Related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year:
| Hoiding Company:
1 JSW Energy Limited (Holding Company)
] Other related parties with whom the Group has entered into transactions during the year:
1 Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited
2 JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited
3 JSW Global Business Solutions Limited
4 JSW Foundation
11l Key Managerial Personnel:
1 Mr. Syed Nasir Quadri - Chairman (w.e.f 30th October, 2021)
2 Mr. Peddanna Ramayanam - Managing Director (w.e.f. 1st November 2020)
3 Mr. Ashok Phalnikar - Director (w.e.f. 29th October, 2020)
4 Mr. Anil Vilas Kolap - Director (w.e.f 29th October, 2021)
5 Mr. Aditya Agarwal - Director (w.e.f 15th June 2020)
6 Ms. Rupa Devi Singh - Independent Director (w.e.f 3rd April, 2020)
7 Mr. K. Surya Prakash - Director (w.e.f 1st July, 2021)
8 Mr. Krishnaraj Nair - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 3rd February 2020)
9 Mr Sanjay Krishnarao Taksande - Director (Upto 19th March, 2021)
10 Mr. Ravindra Dinkarrao Chavan — Chairman (Upto 29th October, 2021)
11 Mr. Ashesh Kumar Padhy - Director (From 2nd September, 2020 upto 1st July, 2021)
12 Mr Narendra Rahalkar- Company Secretary (Upto 31.10.2021)
13 Mr. Sharad Mahendra - Director (Upto 9th June 2020)
14 Mr. Jyoti Kumar Agarwal — Director (Upto 15th September 2020)
15 Mr Yatish Kumar Chhabra -Managing Director (Upto 31st October 2020)
(% in lakh)
B) Transaction during the year Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021
1 Services Paid/(Received)
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited 57.80 52.54
JSW Global Business Solutions Limited 6.94 6.37
JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited - -1.62
2 Sale of materials
JSW Energy Limited - 12.60
3 Rent Paid/(received)
JSW Energy Limited 0.01 0.01
4 Reimbursement received from / {paid to)
JSW Energy Limited (10.84) (15.11)
5 Donations/CSR Expenses
JSW Foundation 65.00 67.00

Amount in T lakh

C) Closing Balances 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
1 Trade (Payables) / Receivables
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (14.56) (13.26)
JSW Energy Limited (1.32) 34.01
JSW Global Business Solution Limited (0.56) 0.07
2 Deposit With
JSW Energy Limited 50.00 50.00
Note:

i) No amounts in respect of related parties have been written off / written back during the year, nor has any provision been made for doubtful
debts / receivables during the year, except as discussed above

ii) Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors,

iii) Related party transactions have been disclosed on basis of value of transactions in terms of the respective contracts.
iv) Terms and conditions of sales and purchases: the sales and purchases transactions among the related parties are in the ordinary course of
business based on normal commercial terms, conditions, market rates and memorandum of understanding signed with the related parties. For
the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has not recorded any loss allowances for transactions between the related parties.

Approval of financial statements:
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 2nd May, 2022.
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Operating segment:

The managing director of the Company has been Identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.

The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however only for one
it viz. "Transmission Services”. Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating

Segments"”.

Contingency Reserve:

The Company has set aside an amount of X 13,797,077 (Previous year  13,797,077) as ‘Contingency Reserve' to be used for the purpose of fulure losses,
which may arise from uninsured risks, or as determined by the board as per Clause 50.7 of MERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2005.

Distlosure of COVID-19 on operations:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 In the preparation of these finandial
statements. The Company's transmisslon capacitles are tied up under long term transmission agreements, which insulates revenue of the Company under
such contracts. Based on the present assessment, the management does not expect any medium to long-term impact on the business of the Company.
The Company has evaluated the possible effects on the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventory, loans and receivables basls the
Internal and external sources of Information and concluded, exercising reasonabte estimates and Judgements, that the carrying amounts of these assets
are recoverable. Having regard to the above, and the Company’s liquidity position, there Is no uncertainty In meeting financial obligations In the
foreseeable future.

Contingent liabilities & Commitments:
There are no contingent liabilities & commitments to be disclosed by the Company.

Other statutory Information:
1) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benaml

property.
2) The Company does not have any iImmovabie properties {other than propertles where the Company Is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly

executed In favor of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held In the name of the company.
3} The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

4) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which Is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
5) The Company has not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financlal year.
6) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{les}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:
{a) directly or Indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entitles Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate

beneficlarles) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiarles.

7) The Company has not recelved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether

recorded In writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or Indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate

beneficiarles) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiarles,

8) The Company does not have any such transactlon which Is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

9) The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on

number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
10) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of

accounts.

The Company Is yet to recelve balance confirmations in respect of certain financlal assets & financlal llabilities. The Management does not expect any
materlal difference affecting the current year's financiat statemants due to the same.

Previous year's figure has been re-grouped/ re-arranged, wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

4 PP

Syed Naslr Quadri Peddanna Ramayanam
Diractor Managlng Director
DIN: 09364307 DIN: 08923138

Place: Mumbai Naveen Manghani Krishnara) Nair
Date: May 2, 2022

Q-

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

—



	JPTL Financial Statement FY20
	JPTL Financial Statement FY21
	JPTL Financial Statement FY22

